
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services, Democratic Services (01254) 

380116/380109/380184 
Email: memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 8 January 2020 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 16 January 2020 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor June Harrison (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle MBE, 
Sara Britcliffe MP, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, 
Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, 
Miles Parkinson OBE, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 14th November 
2019 (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time   
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/2021  (Pages 15 - 38) 
 
Report attached. 
 

7.   Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury Management Strategy Update  
(Pages 39 - 44) 
 
Report attached. 
 

8.   Statutory Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places  (Pages 45 - 68) 
 
Report attached. 
 

9.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 69 - 86) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 13th November 2019 (attached). 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will move the Minutes, the Deputy Leader of the 
Council will second the Minutes. 

 Non-executive Members will be invited to make comment or ask questions on the 
Minutes (5 Minutes). 

 Cabinet Members will be invited to make comments and respond to any points 
raised (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will be given up to 15 Minutes to respond and to 
answer any questions raised. 

 

10.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 87 - 110) 
 
To receive the Minutes of committees, as set out below: 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minutes as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue from the Minutes; the Chair of the relevant 
Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 

Meeting (Municipal Year 2019/20) Date 

Licensing Sub Committee 15th October 2019 

Planning (Trees) Sub Committee 17th October 2019 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

30th October 2019 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage Licensing) 

30th October 2019 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 31st October 2019 

Audit Committee 18th November 2019 
 

11.   Motions submitted on Notice  (Pages 111 - 112) 
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9. 
 

 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 8 January 2020 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Thursday, 14th November, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor June Harrison (Mayor), Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, 

Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle MBE, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, 
Munsif Dad BEM JP, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Glen Harrison, 
Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, 
Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, 
Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson OBE, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, 
Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 

Apologies: Councillors Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Marlene Haworth and 
Stephanie Haworth 

  

 
181 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Diane Fielding, Melissa 
Fisher, Marlene Haworth and Stephanie Haworth. 
 

182 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
Councillor Judith Addison declared a personal interest in the following matters: 
 

 Agenda Item 6 – Cabinet Minutes of 12th September 2019: Minute 118 – Request 
for Funding for the Operational Management of Council Buildings, in the light of her 
membership of the Board of Hyndburn Arts Ltd. 

 

 Agenda Item 7 – Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Minutes of 4th September 2019: Minute 100 – Council Tax Collection and Recovery, 
in the light of her membership of the Board of the Rossendale and Hyndburn 
Citizens Advice Bureau. 

 

 Agenda Item 7 – Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee Minutes of 5th 
September 2019: Minute 105 – Request for Support for the Operational 
Management of Council Buildings, in the light of her membership of the Board of 
Hyndburn Arts Ltd. 

 
There were no dispensations notified. 
 

183 Announcements 
 
1) Recent Events 
 
The Mayor reported that she and the Mayoress had recently been to a lovely event 
celebrating the community work which had been done to improve the three main entrances 
of the Woodnook Nature Reserve, at Royds Street, Perth Street and Miller Fold, in 
Accrington. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

They had also attended an Accrington Pals educational session arranged by North Lancs 
Training Group, which had included remembrance activities in St James Square. 
 
November was a month of commemoration, with Remembrance Sunday and Armistice Day 
providing an opportunity for all to pay their respects to all those brave soldiers who fought 
for us, so that we can enjoy the freedoms we have today. 
 
Along with many others who gathered to commemorate all those who made the ultimate 
sacrifice, the Mayor and Mayoress attended the Remembrance Services in Oakhill Park, 
Accrington and St John’s Church in Baxenden, as well as a commemoration event at St 
John Ambulance in Accrington, and the Armistice Day Service at the Accrington Pals 
Memorial. 
 
The Mayor indicated that it had been an honour and a privilege to represent Hyndburn at 
these poignant and moving commemorations and noted, from talking to her colleagues, that 
all the Remembrance events and parades across the Borough had been well attended too.  
She thanked all who had attended and the Royal British Legion and other agencies for all 
their hard work in co-ordinating the events. 
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council, added his acknowledgment of the 
success of the many service across Hyndburn and appreciation for the service of our armed 
forces both in the past and present.  He confirmed that a letter of thanks would be sent from 
the Council to the Royal British Legion and all those who had contributed to making the 
events such a success. 
 
2) Accrington Market Hall 
 
The Leader of the Council reported that, yesterday, the Cabinet had agreed to a 30% 
reduction in rental charges for the indoor Market Hall.  The reduction reflected the 
difficulties faced by the retail trade and also linked to the wider ambitions to rejuvenate and 
attract people into the town centre.  Part of that process was to create a sustainable vision 
for the market stall traders.  The Council hoped that all local traders would have a 
successful Christmas period and it was committed to supporting them.  
 
3) Climate Emergency Update 
 
The Leader of the Council reminded councillors that, at its last meeting, the Council had 
signed up to the ‘Climate Emergency’ declaration.  In view of this the authority intended to 
work with One Carbon World, a delivery partner for the UN’s ‘Carbon Neutral Now’ 
programme.  The group had been awarded some £65M by the UN to work with 
organisations to help them reduce their carbon footprint.  The cost of engaging One Carbon 
World was approximately £3k.  However, the Chief Executive had been able to negotiate a 
grant of 80% of that cost, which would also be available to other Lancashire authorities.  
The £600 cost would be met from the Cabinet Action Fund.  A cross-party working group 
was due to be established to take forward the Council’s green agenda. 
 
4) Mum to Be 
 
David Welsby, Chief Executive, announced that Councillor Kate Walsh was due to take a 
period of absence from her main Council duties, as her pregnancy entered the later stages.  
On behalf of the Council he wished her all the best for the future and looked forwarded to 
her return to active duties in the Spring 2020. 
 

184 Confirmation of Minutes 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

The minutes of the Council meeting held on 19th September 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Councillor Judith Addison commented that, in relation to Minute 132(2) Notice Submitted on 
Motion – Climate Emergency, there had been a notable increase in the use of domestic 
wood burners in recent years, which was creating pollution from domestic properties not 
seen since the era of coal fires.  She had been surprised not to see this mentioned within 
the Motion submitted. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 19th September 
2019 be approved as a correct record. 
 

185 Question Time 
 
The Mayor reported that no questions had been submitted under this Agenda Item. 
 

186 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 12th September 2019 were submitted. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

187 Minutes of Committees 
 
The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 
 
COMMITTEE 
 

DATE 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

4th September 2019 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

5th September 2019 

Management Review Committee 
 

2nd October 2019 

Planning Committee 
 

9th October 2019 

 
Councillor Dave Parkins, Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee, highlighted from the 
Minutes of the Planning Committee meeting on 9th October 2019, that the Chief Planning 
and Transportation Officer had reported that the authority had lost only one appeal to the 
Planning Inspectorate, out of eight, in the period December to July 2019.  This outcome 
demonstrated the effective working relationship between councillors and officers and that 
the Committee’s approach to decision-making was sound. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

188 Motions submitted on Notice 
 
1) Notice Submitted on Motion – Speeding in Knudzen / Stanhill 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Glen Harrison and seconded by Councillor 
Chris Knight under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

“Since my time as St Oswalds Ward Councillor I have received repeated complaints 
regarding speeding vehicles on Mount St James Knuzden and Stanhill Road finishing on 
Stanhill Lane. 
 
There has been some intervention in Stanhill, but in no way enough by way of alleviating 
the problem. 
 
However in Knuzden, I do not believe there has been any meaningful intervention, despite 
repeated calls for action from myself, other residents and also the Stanhill Residents 
Committee. 
 
This Council resolves to write to Lancashire County Council’s Portfolio Holder for Highways 
and Transport, County Councillor Keith Iddon, for him to answer directly as to what plans 
are intended for measures that will satisfy both Knuzden and Stanhill Residents on this very 
dangerous stretch of road.” 
 
After a debate, during which other councillors raised similar concerns and general issues 
regarding highway safety, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved - That this Council resolves to write to Lancashire County 

Council’s Portfolio Holder for Highways and Transport, 
County Councillor Keith Iddon, for him to answer directly 
as to what plans are intended for measures that will 
satisfy both Knuzden and Stanhill Residents on this very 
dangerous stretch of road. 

 
2) Notice Submitted on Motion – Air Quality Monitoring Outside Primary Schools 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Glen Harrison and seconded by Councillor 
Loraine Cox under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“Poor air quality is a deadly symptom of climate change, which is largely made by human 
activity and disproportionately affects vulnerable people and those living in urban areas.  It 
is causing an environmental and public health crisis 
 
Air pollution is a health issue: it harms the health of the nation.  For each of us, our health is 
unavoidably shaped by the environment we live in.  Environmental factors determine 
around 30% of our healthy life expectancy.  Air pollution poses the single greatest 
environmental threat to human health. 
 
Breathing dirty air is associated with a host of health problems, and all too often it is the 
most vulnerable – children, older people and those from poorer backgrounds – who are hit 
hardest.  In short: clean air helps you live longer. 
 
Toxic chemicals found in the air pose a growing concern for scientists studying brain health, 
especially among adolescents.  Experts call them neurotoxicants, and they’ve been linked 
with a higher risk of suicide, autism, and the myriad of direct physical effects of breathing in 
harmful air, such as asthma and diseases of the lungs. 
 
“From animal studies we know that ultrafine particles cross the blood brain barrier, interact 
with the microglial cells, which in turn affects neurons,” said Dr. Jordi Sunyer, lead author of 
the recent study from the University of Barcelona.  This can result in chronic low-grade 
brain inflammation, he added, which delays brain maturation. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

To better understand how air pollution could affect kids’ brain development, Sunyer and his 
colleagues from the Centre for Research in Environmental Epidemiology (CREAL) collected 
data on 2,715 children ages 7 to 10, who attended 39 schools in Spain.  Every three 
months for a year, the researchers issued tests that were designed for the kids’ cognitive 
abilities in three domains: working memory, superior working memory, and attentiveness.  
In other words, they wanted to check how strong their brains were. 
 
Comparing kids from heavily trafficked schools and those less bogged down by pollution, 
the CREAL team found an 11.5 percent increase in working memory at the clean-air 
schools, but only a 7.4 percent increase at the highly polluted schools.  The findings 
suggest vast room for improvement, Sunyer says.  Both parents and local governments can 
take steps to making sure an area stays pollutant-free and ensuring a child’s brain develops 
at a normal rate. 
 
Choosing a more active form of transportation, such as walking or riding a bike, can go a 
long way toward increasing overall health and avoiding adding to the pollution.  More on the 
technological side of things, school buses can install particle filters and stay conscious to 
turn the engine off at traffic lights. 
 
The health impacts of poor air quality include an increased risk of lung cancer and 
cardiovascular disease, and in pregnancy it can have a detrimental effect on foetal lung 
development.  The Royal College of Physicians estimated that the annual cost of health 
problems arising from exposure to air pollution in the UK exceeds £20 billion.  This includes 
costs to society and business, health services and individuals who are affected. 
 
This Council Resolves to: 
 

 Write to Lancashire County Council with this public health concern as they are the 
public health authority, asking that Lancashire County Council evaluate the cost of 
installing air quality monitoring outside all Primary Schools. 

 

 That in the event that this is an option for Lancashire County Council to adopt this 
strategy, that the County Council post weekly air quality ratings in a visible location 
outside schools on a RAG rating system to indicate the levels of air pollutants on a 
red, amber and green style rating, as this will empower parents to see easily the 
indicators in pollution which will then enable the chance to make key changes to 
address problem areas. 

 

 Write to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, the Rt Hon 
Theresa Villiers MP, to ask that councils receive funding for tackling air quality, and 
that government departments provide a coordinated and joined up approach when 
working with councils who are tackling poor air quality.” 

 
After a debate, which included a discussion on a wider programme of air quality monitoring 
and possible actions to reduce pollution, the motion was put to the vote and declared 
carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council resolves to write to Lancashire County 

Council with this public health concern as they are the 
public health authority, asking that Lancashire County 
Council evaluate the cost of installing air quality 
monitoring outside all Primary Schools. 

 
(2) That in the event that this is an option for Lancashire 

County Council to adopt this strategy, that the County 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

Council post weekly air quality ratings in a visible 
location outside schools on a RAG rating system to 
indicate the levels of air pollutants on a red, amber and 
green style rating, as this will empower parents to see 
easily the indicators in pollution which will then enable 
the chance to make key changes to address problem 
areas. 

 
(3) That this Council resolves to write to the Secretary of 

State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, the Rt Hon 
Theresa Villiers MP, to ask that councils receive funding 
for tackling air quality, and that government departments 
provide a coordinated and joined up approach when 
working with councils who are tackling poor air quality. 

 
3) Notice Submitted on Motion – Rail Services in East Lancashire 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Noordad Aziz and seconded by Councillor 
Kate Walsh under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this Council resolves to write to the Department for Transport and Transport for the 
North to register our concerns with the expected continuation of usage of the Pacer Train 
by the Northern franchise (Arriva Rail North Limited) with trains originating from East 
Lancashire past the deadline for withdrawal of the end of 2019. 
 
Northern is one of the few franchises to have these 'Buses on Tracks' hindering passenger 
reliance as well as being unsuitable for disabled passengers.  This issue highlights the 
continued poor performance by Northern following last year's timetabling issue which has a 
detrimental impact on the residents of Hyndburn and East Lancashire. 
 
We ask that the following be undertaken 
 

1. That the Northern train operator franchise be brought back into Public Ownership 
based on its continued poor performance and delivery to the residents of Hyndburn 
and East Lancashire.  Also a firm investment programme be undertaken as part of a 
return to public ownership to bring into line the rail service in East Lancashire with 
other parts of the country.  

 
2. That a firm commitment be given by the Department for Transport that services from 

East Lancashire that are run by Northern will not be scaled back as part of any 
review as they provide access to economic centres for many of our residents. 

 
3. That a review be undertaken of the Northern timetable of services to highlight the 

poor onward connectivity that exists for East Lancashire passengers by the 
Northern franchise. 

 
4. That, as part of the review, at least one train originating from East Lancashire be 

allowed to utilise the Ordsall curve allowing direct trains from East Lancashire to 
Manchester Airport and that the East Lancashire to Manchester line has a stop at 
Rishton.  

 
5. That a firm investment programme in the East Lancashire rail network infrastructure 

be developed, including electrification, reopening of the Skipton to Colne rail link, 
and increased rail passenger and freight capacity, so that trains become a true 
alternative for transport increasing social and economic mobility.” 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

 
After a debate, which included some dissent about the first sentence of Paragraph 1. 
above, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council resolves to write to the Department for 

Transport and Transport for the North to register our 
concerns with the expected continuation of usage of the 
Pacer Train by the Northern franchise (Arriva Rail North 
Limited) with trains originating from East Lancashire past 
the deadline for withdrawal of the end of 2019. 

 
(2) That the correspondence referred to at (1) above should 

include a request that the points set out at Paragraphs 1 
to 5 in the motion be undertaken. 

 
4) Notice Submitted on Motion – Pension Authority 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Glen Harrison and seconded by Councillor 
Noordad Aziz under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“Recent moves from Cheshire Pension Fund – the pension scheme for 300 employers 
including Warrington Borough Council is making a £500 million investment in a new green 
fund. 
 
It is one of the first investors in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central 
Climate Factor Fund, a fund which is moving away from companies with greater carbon 
emissions and supporting those investing in green technology. 
 
This Council is fully committed to lowering carbon emissions and supporting those investing 
in green technology. 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 
Ask that Lancashire Pension Authority review investment with a view to supporting 
environmentally sustainable initiatives.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved - That this Council resolves to ask that Lancashire Pension 

Authority review investment with a view to supporting 
environmentally sustainable initiatives. 

 
5) Notice Submitted on Motion – Universal Credit Implications 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Tim O’Kane and seconded by Councillor 
Noordad Aziz under Council Procedure Rule A9.  The motion related to the fact that NHS 
prescription forms did not currently contain a tick box for patients who were in receipt of 
Universal Credit to claim an exemption from prescription charges and that failure to tick the 
correct alternative exemption box in the patient declaration could lead to the imposition of a 
fine when the exemption claim was processed:- 
 
“Recent indications show that NHS prescription forms are still being circulated to vulnerable 
people in Hyndburn at risk of being sanctioned through no fault of their own.  I and my 
seconder recommend that: 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

1. The Secretary of State for Health and Secretary for DWP of the incoming 
Government be contacted to highlight the inconvenience this can cause to the 
citizens of Hyndburn  

 
2. That all pharmacies In Hyndburn be made aware of this ongoing situation and seek 

their cooperation.” 
 
The motion was put to the vote without debate and was declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council resolves to contact the Secretary of 

State for Health and Secretary for DWP of the incoming 
Government to highlight the inconvenience that out-dated 
prescription forms can cause to the citizens of Hyndburn. 

 
(2) That all pharmacies In Hyndburn be made aware of this 

ongoing situation and that their cooperation be sought. 
 
6) Notice Submitted on Motion – Dementia Friendly Paths in Hyndburn Parks and 

Green Spaces 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Kate Walsh and, in the absence of 
Councillor Melissa Fisher, was seconded by Councillor Noordad Aziz under Council 
Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“1 in 3 people will develop Dementia in Hyndburn within their life time.  This means that a 
large majority of residents will be affected by the challenges that are faced by people living 
with dementia. 
 
Small changes to the local environment can often have a profoundly positive effect on the 
lives of those living with dementia. 
 
People living with dementia can often experience an impaired perception of the world.  This 
can result in black surfaces, such as tarmaced paths, being hard or impossible for them to 
navigate.  
 
To counter this common symptom of dementia and ensure that our parks and green spaces 
are accessible to those living with dementia this Council resolves to look at the option of 
painted ‘Dementia Friendly’ paths on some of our tarmaced pathways within the borough.” 
 
After a debate, which included councillors’ own personal experiences of those living with 
dementia and the wider issue of accessibility of open spaces for those with disabilities, the 
motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved - That this Council resolves to look at the option of painted 

‘Dementia Friendly’ paths on some of our tarmaced 
pathways within the Borough 

 
The Mayor reminded Members that the next meeting of the Council was not until 16th 
January 2020.  As this was the last meeting before Christmas, she wished everyone the 
very best for the festive season. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
9 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 16 January 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson OBE   

REPORT AUTHOR: Joe McIntyre  

Deputy Chief Executive 

TITLE OF REPORT: Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/2021 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local 
Government Act 
1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of 
publication: 

 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1. The report presents the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2020/21.  It remains 

largely the same as the scheme approved by the Council for 2017/18 with the 
exception of a number of minor changes to assessment criteria to keep the 
scheme in line with national changes to Housing Benefit and Universal Credit. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1. The Council approves the new Council Tax Support Scheme for 2020/21 and 

beyond. 
 
2.2. The Council continues to provide a maximum subsidy level available to 

working age claimants of Council Tax Support at 70%. 
 
2.3. The Council approves the proposed changes to assessment criteria as 

outlined in this report to keep the scheme in line with national changes being 
made to Housing Benefit and Universal Credit. 

 
2.4. It is noted that the Council Tax Support Scheme may be subject to change in 

the future due to budgetary and operational requirements and Council 
delegates authority to the Deputy Chief Executive to make amendments to the 
scheme to comply with national guidelines and to ensure the scheme remains 
fiscally neutral. 

 
2.5. The Hardship Fund introduced in 2013/14 continues to operate to provide 

assistance to those claimants who struggle to meet the cost of their share of 
Council Tax. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6.



 
2.6. That the Deputy Chief Executive is given delegated power to take all 

reasonable steps to undertake the calculation, collection, administration and 
recovery of Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates in accordance with 
the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 and the Local Government Finance Act 2012 (all as amended from time 
to time) and further government regulations that may be issued. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1. In 2020/2021, Council Tax Support (CTS) will be in its eighth year, having 

been devolved to Local Authorities nationally in 2013 following the abolition of 
Council Tax Benefit.  In 2013 Local Authorities were given a broad remit to 
design their own local CTS schemes for working age claimants, with pension 
age claimants still subject to a national scheme allowing up to 100% CTS.  

 
3.2. Prior to 2013 Council Tax Benefit was funded in full by the Government: when 

Council Tax Support was introduced, the Government reduced Hyndburn’s 
grant by 10% of the previous year’s expenditure for all claimants and rolled 
future funding into the Revenue Support Grant.   

 
3.3. To maintain an affordable and fiscally neutral scheme during a period of 

reduced funding for local authorities, the maximum level of subsidy available 
to working age claimants in Hyndburn’s reduced from 80% to 73% in 2016/17 
and to 70% from 2017/18. Our scheme has been reviewed annually to ensure 
that it remains sustainable and the maximum subsidy available in 2019/20 
was 70%. 

 
3.4. Council Tax Support cannot be considered in isolation: any changes to the 

scheme must be viewed in the context of national changes to benefits, 
(Universal Credit in particular), overall Council Tax increases (which increase 
CTS expenditure) and the Local Government Spending Review which has 
now been postponed to 2020 with expectations of reform from 2021/22. 
 

3.5. Government has confirmed that local authorities will receive funding for 
2020/21 based on 2019/20 levels and that the Council will receive its 2019/20 
Revenue Support Grant in 2020/21.  This grant income is available for 12 
months longer than has been anticipated previously, and the Council’s short 
term financial plans have been amended to reflect this.  The impact for 
Council Tax Support means that the Council is in a better financial position to 
be able to continue, at least for 2020/21, with a maximum subsidy level of 
70%. 

 
Universal Credit 

3.10 When considering CTS in the context of national benefits, Universal Credit 
(UC) is having the greatest impact.  There are three main reasons for this: 

 
1. The calculation of UC is fundamentally different to previous benefits as it 

is linked to real time earnings information from HMRC and if there is a 
change to income, then a claim may be assessed every month. 

Page 16



 
2. Any change to UC entitlement affects CTS entitlement directly.  
 
3. As a localised scheme, our current CTS scheme does not align 

completely with the national prescribed CTS scheme which has adjusted 
in line with the national UC scheme.  The differences between the 
prescribed scheme and our scheme prevent full automation, creating an 
increased administrative burden for the Council. 

 
3.11 In April 2018 there were 432 CTS claims from UC claimants.  By March 2019 

this had risen to 1,141, an increase of 709 (164%).  This figure is increasing 

all the time and once the national roll out of UC is completed, we are likely to 

have around 5,000 working age claimants on UC.   

3.12 Each change to a UC claim generates a ‘notice’ from the DWP to our benefits 

team.  Notices issued by the DWP for UC claims rose from 6,189 in 2017/18 

to 24,683 in 2018/19, an increase of 18,494 (300%). As claims increase, so 

will the number of notices issued by the DWP.  Based on an estimated 5,000 

claims this could be 100,000 notices annually. 

3.13  There are currently around 7,200 households claiming Council Tax Support in 
Hyndburn; 2,900 (40%) are pensioners and 4,300 (60%) are working age.  
Pensioners are protected under Government legislation and continue to 
receive Council Tax Support to the same level as they did under the Council 
Tax Benefit rules, up to a maximum of 100%.  

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 In order to revise or replace a CTS scheme, a local authority must first consult 

on potential changes.  Having already consulted for 2020/21, the options for 
revision or replacement are now limited to those proposed in the consultation.  

 
4.2 The option to increase the minimum contribution levels in the CTS scheme to 

the levels outlined in the public consultation remains available however this 
report recommends that this option is rejected currently as the Council’s short 
term financial position has changed and the Council remains committed to 
supporting low income, disabled and out of work households wherever 
possible.   

 
4.3 The option to maintain local income disregards also remains however this 

would require the recruitment of additional assessment staff at around 
£70k/year and for this reason, it is recommended that local income disregards 
are amended to mirror those used in the assessment of Universal Credit. 

 
4.3 Other funding options presented in the consultation, detailed below, remain 

available such as making savings by reducing other services.  This report 
recommends that Council pays due regard to the results of the public 
consultation and extended Revenues Support Grant funding. 

 

Page 17



5. Consultations 
 
5.1. The Council consulted with major preceptors and surveyed the public 

between the 13th September and 5th December 2019 receiving 569 
responses. Respondents were asked for their views on both the funding 
options for CTS from 2020 and proposed changes to assessment criteria. 

 
5.2. Respondents were also given the opportunity to make any comments or 

suggest alternatives to the funding options provided.  All recorded comments 
are available at appendix 3. Comprehensive equality monitoring data was 
also collected. 

 
5.3. We did not receive representation from individuals or groups that perceived 

that the proposed changes were likely to have a disproportionate impact on 
any of the groups protected by equality legislation.  Analysis of the 
consultation is attached at appendix 2. 

 
5.4. Overall, 70% of respondents told us that they were in favour of either raising 

Council Tax for all Hyndburn residents or making savings by cutting or 
reducing services with 47.8% in favour of raising Council Tax for all residents 
by 0.6%.  17.7% of respondents were in favour of increasing the minimum 
payment levels for CTS claimants with 5.3% in favour of increasing the 
minimum payment level to 40% and 12.4% providing contributions of other 
options, all of which are included at appendix 2. 43.8% were also in favour the 
proposed changes to assessment criteria, keeping Hyndburn’s scheme in line 
with national changes to Housing Benefit and Universal Credit.  

 
5.5. These results allowed for full consideration of all options and public opinion 

remains an essential part of this decision making process.  Having studied all 
available financial models and forecasts, and with consideration of the 
Council’s short and medium term financial prospects, this report recommends 
Council approves the option to maintain subsidy to working age Council Tax 
Support claimants at 70%. 

 
5.6. This recommendation is made with regard to responses from our major 

preceptors and with responses from our survey of the public.   
 
5.7. To further assist any individuals the Council operates a Hardship Fund that 

can provide financial assistance to those who are struggling to meet their 
share of Council Tax.  The scheme has been operation since 2013 and has 
sufficient resources to cope with any potential increases as a result of these 
changes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



6. Implications 
 

Financial implications 
(including any future 
financial commitments for 
the Council) 

 

Continuing to provide subsidy at 70% 
could cost the Council around £34k – 
the exact figure is not yet known as it 
will be linked to overall Council Tax 
increases. 
 
Major preceptors may also levy an 
additional amount of Council Tax, 
proportional to their precept.   
 
Maintaining subsidy levels at 70% 
means that Council Tax bills for CTS 
claimants will increase proportionately 
alongside all Council Tax increases.  
Pension age claimants will not be 
affected and remain eligible for up to 
100% CTS. 
 
Those claimants affected by the 
change to Local Income Disregards 
may see an increase to their Council 
Tax bill as the income we use to 
assess their entitlement will be 
increased.  Making these changes 
provides around £30k of savings 
across all preceptors, Hyndburn’s 
share being around £4k.  Final figures 
are dependent on Council Tax 
increases not yet determined.  
Making these changes means that 
the Council will not need to employ 
additional benefits staff at around 
£70k/year.   

Legal and human rights 
implications 

 

The statutory basis for the scheme is 
set out in the Local Government 
Finance Act 2012 and associated 
regulations.   
 
The Council is subject to the public 
sector equality duty introduced by the 
Equality Act 2010.  When making a 
decision in respect of these 
recommendations in this report, 
Council must have regard to the need 
to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and 

Page 19



victimisation; and 

 Advance equality of 
opportunity between those who 
share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who 
do not; and 

 Foster good relations between 
those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
For these purposes, the relevant 
protected characteristics are: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation.  To assist the Council in 
this regard, a Customer First Analysis 
has been carried out as part of the 
review process and is attached at 
appendix 1.  Council is advised to 
consider the Customer First Analysis 
and its obligations in respect of the 
public sector equality duty when 
making a decision in respect of the 
recommendations contained in this 
report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

There is some risk that a number of 
people may struggle to meet the 
additional payments.  A Hardship 
Fund exists to assist people in these 
circumstances.   

Equality and diversity 
implications 
A Customer First Analysis 
should be completed in 
relation to policy decisions 
and should be attached as an 
appendix to the report.  

 

A Customer First Analysis (appendix 
1) has been undertaken. The Council 
received no representations during 
consultation that any group would 
suffer disproportionately from the 
proposed change.  

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
1. Council Tax Support Scheme Council Report 5

th
 January 2017 

2. Council Tax Support Scheme 2019/20 

 
 
8. Freedom of Information 

Page 20

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s5679/Council%20Tax%20Support%20Scheme.pdf
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/council-tax-support/


 
8.1. The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government 

Act 1972, Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

 
 
 

Page 21



Appendix 1 

8 
 

 

Council Tax Support  

Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

 
January 2020  

 
The Council’s response to the public sector equality duty is a comprehensive 
Customer First Analysis. 

Purpose 

 What are you trying to achieve with the policy / service / function? 
 
Hyndburn’s Council Tax Support Scheme is financial support for working age 
claimants of Council Tax Support living in Hyndburn.  The scheme, also 
known as Local Council Tax Reduction (LCTR) has been in place since April 
2013.  The 2020/21 Council Tax Support scheme replaces the Council Tax 
Support scheme in place since 2017. 

 

 Who defines and manages it? 
 

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 and Local Government Finance Act 2012 
provide the scope for Local Council Tax Support Schemes. 
 
The 2020/21 Council Tax Support scheme is defined by the Council and 
implemented and managed by Benefits, Revenues and Customer Contact 
management team.   

 

 Who do you intend to benefit from it and how? 
 

Eligible working age claimants of Council Tax Support in Hyndburn will benefit 
from financial assistance in the form of a reduced Council Tax bill, in line with 
their circumstances and qualifying criteria. 

 

 What could prevent people from getting the most out of the scheme? 
 

A lack of awareness of Council Tax Support may prevent someone from 
applying and therefore receiving financial subsidy.  However, Council Tax 
Support is a well-known national and local benefit – correspondence from the 
department contains information about CTS, as does our website and our 
customers services staff provide information to all residents.  Our partners and 
referral agencies are all informed and aware of Hyndburn’s scheme. 

Page 22



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

9 
 

 

 How will you get your customers involved in the analysis and how will 
you tell people about it? 

 
A public consultation was held from 13th September to 5th December 2019, 
during which time we received 569 responses.  Information and reports are all 
publically available.  Customers are informed through the Council’s regular 
channels as well as through ongoing correspondence about their specific 
entitlements and liabilities. 
 

Evidence 

 How will you know if the policy delivers its intended outcome / benefits? 
 
Eligible claimants in Hyndburn will receive Council Tax Support in line with the 
scheme. 

 

 How satisfied are your customers and how do you know? 
 
Satisfaction with regards to this scheme specifically is difficult to measure as 
there are a wide range of opinions and views on the benefit system nationally 
and locally as well as Council Tax and local revenue collection.  
 

 What existing data do you have on the people that use the service and 
the wider population? 

 
We hold household and income details of current Council Tax Support 
recipients which has enabled us to run financial modelling scenarios when 
considering scheme options.  We have access to wider population statistics 
which enabled us to assess the range of responses we have received as 
equality monitoring data was available (albeit optional) as part of the survey. 
 

 What other information would it be useful to have?  How could you get 
this? 

 
It is not possible to future proof a Council Tax Support scheme, our claimant 
base changes on a daily basis and we cannot always foresee or predict major 
changes locally or nationally which is why a broad consultation was conducted 
before narrowing down potential changes.  
 

 Are you breaking down data by equality groups where relevant (such as 
by gender, age, disability, ethnicity, sexual orientation, marital status, 
religion and belief, pregnancy and maternity)? 
 
Yes – equalities data was collected throughout the consultation and was used 
when analysing data.   
 

 Are you using partners, stakeholders, and councillors to get information 
and feedback? 

 

Page 23



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

10 
 

Yes – the consultation was broad and we consulted with partners, groups and 
councillors.   

Impact 

 Are some people benefiting more – or less - than others?  If so, why 
might this be? 

 
Council Tax Support is awarded based on household, income and personal 
circumstances and as a result some applicants will not qualify for financial 
assistance.  This is a policy intention however, as the support is means tested 
and therefore will be available to those whose circumstances are within the 
thresholds for support. 

Actions 

 If the evidence suggests that the policy / service / function benefits a 
particular group – or disadvantages another - is there a justifiable 
reason for this and if so, what is it? 

 
The Council Tax Support scheme is intended to provide financial support to 
low income and out-of-work claimants who are of working age and who qualify 
for support.  Council Tax Support is means tested and not intended for those 
who do not qualify – as above, the scheme is intended to support claimants 
who qualify and cannot be made available to all residents. 

 

 Is it discriminatory in any way? 
 

No.   
 

 Is there a possible impact in relationships or perceptions between 
different parts of the community? 
 
Council Tax Support and the welfare benefit system generally is an emotive 
topic with a broad range of opinions from different parts of the community; 
while we have taken public consultation results into consideration when 
producing this scheme, it is unlikely that the scheme alone will eliminate 
differing perceptions or views in this area. 

 

 What measures can you put in place to reduce disadvantages? 
 

Information about Council Tax Support is provided to customers with the aim 
of encouraging claims from those who may qualify. 
 

 Do you need to consult further? 
 

Not at this stage. 
 

 Have you identified any potential improvements to customer service? 
 

Customer service improvements are a constant consideration for the service 
and information provided to residents is clear, concise and accurate. 
 

Page 24



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

11 
 

 Who should you tell about the outcomes of this analysis? 
 

This analysis will form part of the wider Council Tax Support project and will 
be included with all documents available to the public as part of our 
commitment to transparency. 
 

 Have you built the actions into your Business Plan with a clear 
timescale? 

 
Yes.   

 

 When will this assessment need to be repeated? 
 

This assessment will be repeated when the Council Tax Support scheme is 
reviewed. 
 

Page 25



 

12 
 

 
 

 

Council Tax Support 2020/21  

Consultation Results 

 
January 2020 

 

Introduction 
1.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 sets out that billing authorities must: 
 

 consult any major precepting authority, and then; 

 publish a draft scheme, and then; 

 consult those people who have an interest in how the new scheme will 
operate. 

 
1.2 Consulting with interested parties ensures that we better understand the 

impact of any proposals on individuals and certain groups.  We will consider 
the feedback we receive together with all suggestions for improving the draft 
scheme before we decide upon any final scheme for 2020/21. 

Method 
2.1 We recognise that the rate of subsidy in Council Tax Support is not just an 

issue for those in receipt of these subsidies, but impacts on all local residents 
as they are contributing to the subsidy via the taxes they pay.  Our 
consultation therefore included tax payers as well as those in receipt of the 
benefit and other interested parties including the main preceptors.   

 
2.2 Consultation was multi-faceted and varied in its methods so that we could 

provide a range of opportunities to allow as many people as possible to have 
their say. 

 
2.3 Our methods for consultation included: 
 

 Online consultation via our website and social media 

 Postal surveys 

 Email surveys 

 Telephone surveys for those unable to access the web or portal form 
 

Page 26



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

13 
 

 
 
 
 
2.4 We advertised our consultation using: 
 

 press releases to local newspapers, 

 our website, 

 leaflets sent out with other Council correspondence, 

 social media, 

 email 
 

Responses 
3.1 This consultation asked for views on the funding options for Council Tax 

Support in 2020/21 and proposed changes to assessment criteria known as 
“local income disregards”. 

 
1.3 Respondents were also given the opportunity to make any comments or 

suggest alternatives to the funding options provided.  Comprehensive equality 
monitoring data was collected. 
 

1.4 In total we received 569 responses. 

Results 
4.1 Question 1 asked for views on the funding of Council Tax Support and 

provided options including raising the minimum level of Council Tax paid by 
CTS claimants, raising Council Tax for all taxpayers and reducing or cutting 
services.  An option for other ideas was also available and we receive 70 
comments, all of which are included at appendix 1. 

 

The Council, along with Lancashire County Council, Lancashire 
Police and Lancashire Fire and Rescue, has to find a funding shortfall 
of £252,558 for Council Tax Support in 2020/21. 
 
Which of the following funding options, if any, do you think we should 
choose? 

1: Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by 
working age claimants of CTS by 5%  

54 9.56% 

2.Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by 
working age claimants of CTS by 7.5%  

16 2.83% 

3.Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by 
working age claimants of CTS by 10%  

30 5.31% 

4: Raise Council Tax for all Hyndburn residents by 
0.6% 

270 47.79% 

5: Make savings by cutting or further reducing other 
services 

125 22.12% 

6. Another suggestion (opens up a box) 70 12.39% 

 
 

Page 27



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

14 
 

 
 
4.2 Option 4 is the most popular option selected by respondents.  This option was 

chosen by 47.79% of respondents, 76.76% of which told us that they do not 
claim Council Tax Support.  This was the most popular option for both men 
and women. 

 
4.3 Question 2, after an explanation and link to further information, asked 

respondents for their views on removing local income disregards from 
Hyndburn’s Council Tax Support Scheme: 

 

Should the Council remove local income disregards from its Council 
Tax Support scheme? 

Yes 231 43.83% 

No 129 24.48% 

Don’t Know 167 31.69% 

 
4.4 46.09% of respondents agreed that local income disregards should be 

removed from the CTS scheme, 21.88% disagreed and 32.03% didn’t know.  
49.18% of respondents who told us they do not claim CTS agreed with this 
suggested change whereas 34.83% of CTS claimants disagreed with 34.83% 
of CTS claimants agreeing with this suggestion. 

 

Equality Monitoring  
5.1 The responses we received can be cross referenced with equality monitoring 

data:  
 
 

 Consultation 
Response 

Hyndburn or 
national 
demographic 

Do you currently claim Council Tax Support in Hyndburn? 

Yes 18.16% 19.46% 

No 75.51% 80.54% 

Don’t know 2.01% n/a 

Prefer not to say 4.29% n/a 

Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem 
which has lasted, or which is expected to last, at least 12 months? 

Yes, limited a lot 18.31% 
22.15% 

Yes, limited a little 15.23% 

No 61.11% 77.84% 

Prefer not to say 5.35% n/a 

What is your ethnic group? 

White – 
Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 

82.47% 85.3% 

White – Irish 1.24% 0.5% 

White – Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0.41% 0.1% 

Mixed – White and Black Caribbean 0.21% 0.2% 

Page 28



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

15 
 

Mixed – White and Black African 0.41% 0.0% 

Mixed – White and Asian 0.21% 0.4% 

Asian or Asian British – Indian 0.21% 0.35% 

Asian or Asian British – Pakistani 4.95% 9.35% 

Asian or Asian British – Bangladeshi 0.82% 0.5% 

Asian or Asian British – Chinese 0.00% 0.3% 

Black or Black British – Caribbean 0.00% 0.1% 

Black or Black British – African 0.00% 0.1% 

Prefer not to say 5.77% n/a 

Other 4.54% n/a 

What is your gender? 

Female 53.61% 50.6% 

Male 40.00% 49.4% 

Prefer not to say 4.95% n/a 

Other 1.44% n/a 

Does your gender identity match your sex as assigned at birth? 

Yes 93.40% Unknown 

No 1.24% Unknown 

Prefer not to say 5.36% n/a 

What is your legal marital or civil partnership status? 

Divorced 13.28% 
10.5% Formerly in a registered civil 

partnership which is now dissolved 
0.00% 

In a registered civil partnership 1.04% 0.1% 

Married 42.32% 45.7% 

Never married and never in a registered 
civil partnership 

24.27% 33.0% 

Separated but still in a registered civil 
partnership 

0.21% 
3.2% 

Separated but still legally married 2.28% 

Surviving partner from a registered civil 
partnership 

0.00% 
7.4% 

Widowed 3.94% 

Prefer not to say 12.66% n/a 

What is your religion?  

No religion 25.77% 
17% 

Atheist 6.80% 

Buddhist 0.41% 0.2% 

Christian – including Church of 
England, Catholic, Protestant and all 
other Christian denominations 

49.48% 66.4% 

Hindu 0.41% 0.1% 

Jewish 0.00% 0.0% 

Muslim 5.15% 10.3% 

Sikh 0.21% 0.0% 

Prefer not to say 9.07% 5.7% 

Other 2.68% 0.3% 

Do you look after, or give any help or support to family members, 
friends, neighbours or others because of either long-term physical or 
mental ill-health and/or a disability? 

Page 29



Council Tax Support Customer First Analysis 2020/21 

16 
 

Yes 38.19% unknown 

No 56.06% unknown 

Prefer not to say 5.75% n/a 

Page 30



 

17 
 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



9.56%

2.83%

5.31%

47.79%

22.12%

12.39%

Q1 Which of the following funding options, if any, do you think we should
choose?

Answered: 565 Skipped: 4

TOTAL

# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 I do not think anyone on benefits should pay any council tax get the £70k a year by cutting the top
brass pay.

12/4/2019 1:49 PM

2 Take out the word "raise" 12/4/2019 3:58 AM

3 Raise all council tax for everyone by 0.5% and raise the highest band by 1%. After doing that
reduce non essential spending and increase funding for hyndburn residents collection service (all
wheel bins) and more stuff for children

12/3/2019 11:37 AM

1. Raise the
minimum amou...

2. Raise the
minimum amou...

3.Raise the
minimum amou...

4: Raise
Council Tax ...

5: Make
savings by...

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

1.  Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by working age claimants of CTS by 5% - an increase of £62.10 a year for
a Band A property (£46.58 with a single person discount).

2. Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by working age claimants of CTS by 7.5% - an increase of £93.15 per year
for a Band A property (£70.25 with a single person discount).

3.Raise the minimum amount of Council Tax paid by working age claimants of CTS by 10% - an increase of £124.20 per year
for a Band A property (£93.15 with a single person discount).

4: Raise Council Tax for all Hyndburn residents by 0.6%, an increase of £6.75 a year for a band A property.

5: Make savings by cutting or further reducing other services

Other (please specify)

1 / 5

Council Tax Support 2020 SurveyMonkey

Page 33



4 Make cuts to the salaries of overpaid Directors would soon make up this shortfall 12/1/2019 10:26 AM

5 raise the money by cutting stopping expenses claims by councillors. or reducing rents on market
units to attract more business.

11/29/2019 11:13 AM

6 It's to hard to claim fill in paper form's! Post in the orange envelope? And the the online lark? Still
can't do it?? It would be better for you! And you'll get your money, if you just deduct it from my
universal credit before I get it?

11/27/2019 4:13 AM

7 Appoint a qualified Business Leader as Town Centre Manager. Reinvigorate the town's appeal
and trade. Steadily growing business and prosperity in the area.

11/24/2019 6:21 PM

8 Shouldnt pay council tax and it just funds the government which puts their wages up but not our
own

11/22/2019 12:24 AM

9 Don't raise the council tax as you are over charging as is. Hyndburn borough council are the most
useless council I've eve had to deal with. Lower your council tax. Stop adding to the bill.

11/21/2019 9:58 AM

10 Hello could not see an option for cutting the men and womens wages at the top of Hyndburn
council by half clearly they will not be satisfied until the area is run into the ground get rid of the
dead wood and inject fresh blood into the council new ideas if they were running a football club
they would have been sacked two seasons ago rotten!

11/18/2019 12:07 PM

11 Petition the government for more funding from central government, helped by higher rate income
tax.

11/18/2019 12:19 AM

12 Cut other things like redoing the town floor when it didn’t need doing instead of wanting to take
more money off hard working people who are trying to make a living and support themselves!!!

11/13/2019 8:17 PM

13 have the banks pay out of their profits. also, check the local takeaways and if everything is not to
record with cash, make them pay. tax the unhealthy food and the rich.

11/13/2019 8:56 AM

14 Try getting some money off all the people sat outside Hyndburns' many pubs at 10.30am waiting
for them to open instead of continually hammering working people. I walked past the Broadway
pub just after lunchtime on a Wednesday the other week and it was full of people who obviously
don't work throwing money over the bar and singing karaoke. I work a 50 week and overtime just
to pay my bills. Maybe put a 50p surcharge on every pint served between 11 and 5.

11/11/2019 9:31 PM

15 Maybe the tens of thousands of pounds claimed by all the councillors in expenses could be
reviewed and therefore saving a potential fortune

11/10/2019 2:53 PM

16 Specification for building 1 lowerfold road great Harwood 11/9/2019 4:05 PM

17 Working residents of Hyndburn already pay more than their fair share because we are subsidising
a huge proportion of people who do not work!!!! Be fair and make everyone pay, including
pensioners and people on benefits.

11/9/2019 10:43 AM

18 seeing as income tax goes to pay for all the emergency services anyway i would like to know
where the (unlawful) council tax goes

11/8/2019 1:01 PM

19 Stop wasting money on other things that don't have the same impact on the county 11/7/2019 5:56 PM

20 Spend public money more sensibly. 11/7/2019 4:52 PM

21 Ask the government to stop giving MPs a bonus and redirect the money to the local councils-
where it is needed! They can’t even agree a deal on Brexit-any other business would have had
them either on a performance review or sacked!

11/7/2019 11:25 AM

22 What is meant by working age - less than 60, 65? 11/6/2019 2:33 PM

23 Stop paying council executives ridiculous wages when some of them don't have the knowledge
that their job demands.

11/5/2019 4:14 PM

2 / 5

Council Tax Support 2020 SurveyMonkey

Page 34



24 Reduce annual wastage costs. Reduce annual salaries of the higher earning Personnel. Reduce
unrequired staff. I object to any further raise in the council tax. Its all too easy to raise this tax but
far from fair on tenants house owners and landlords. The buck has to stop somewhere else but
certainly not on council tax. My company has spent a lot of money this year, in particular with the
new Selective Licensing Charge. I can guarantee you with these outrages charges, we will not
continue to invest in any more Investment Properties in Accrington. Why should Landlords and
Tenants for that matter become a main source of income. I certainly wont be contributing any
further with purchases in Accrington

11/4/2019 12:36 PM

25 Claim a refund on the new Accrington disgrace and always flooding market square. Cut expenses
to councillors, especially to those we never see in action. Reduce the amount of job protected
council officials who hide behind email and who refuse to answer the telephone.

11/1/2019 4:44 PM

26 Invest in a council owned property scheme (possibly a block of flats to start off) and don't sell it this
time you idiots. Rental income could really help the public purse. Additionally, cut business rates.
Economic growth is being strangled to death. People can't afford to keep shops open. You'll waste
less on chasing up people who can't afford council tax if there is actually work for them. More of
less equals more over all.

10/31/2019 12:25 AM

27 Option 4 above, but by 1.00% 10/30/2019 10:03 AM

28 raise the tax that rich people have to pay 10/28/2019 5:03 PM

29 Install speed cameras close to Great Harwood Cemetery on Blackburn Road in Great Harwood.
Alternatively have regular Police Speed stops nearby. There is so much speeding on this section
of road (both into and out of the town) that money could be made very easily.

10/27/2019 7:21 PM

30 cut salaries of high paid council officials to raise the money or get rid of one or two 10/27/2019 11:14 AM

31 Bring in car parking charges 10/25/2019 5:48 PM

32 stop wasting money 10/24/2019 9:19 AM

33 none off these most in hynburn cannot afford it but if you had to it can only be band a number 2 10/24/2019 7:24 AM

34 Do not cut anymore services. Right minded people understand the importance of social care and
youth investment.

10/23/2019 1:52 PM

35 Make savings without reducing services 10/23/2019 1:25 PM

36 Sell the Market Hall to a company who knows how to run it. 10/22/2019 7:47 PM

37 Raise council tax for higher bands. People living in band A-C properties have enough to deal with
financially. "From each according to his ability, to each according to his needs."

10/22/2019 5:25 PM

38 Raise council tax on higher band properties, by 5-10%, with percentages scaled exponentially
towards the highest bands. Don’t tax residents who are on support and can’t afford the loss of
public services.

10/22/2019 5:16 PM

39 Increase by bands - 1% for a band A, 2% for band B, 3% for C etc 10/22/2019 3:01 PM

40 Increase the Council Tax property base - the number of properties on which Council Tax is paid. 10/20/2019 8:38 AM

41 Invest in digital ways of working and reduce printing and other non value processes. The council is
behind other authorities in this area and can generate significant savings if it modernises.

10/18/2019 9:34 PM

42 With the new houses being built you don't need to increase 10/18/2019 12:21 PM

43 Get rid of council tax benefit and made the acrobats go to work 10/15/2019 9:25 AM

44 Maybe MPs shouldnt het paid as much 10/13/2019 10:59 PM

45 Get rid of the police an crime commisnor 10/13/2019 6:25 PM

46 reduce the Raise the council tax paid by working age claimants by an increase of 5 % per year for
Band D - H ( why is there even a discussion on taking more money from the lowest earners in the
community?)

10/13/2019 12:00 PM

47 Make money recycling old sofas etc instead of landfill. 10/11/2019 12:05 PM

3 / 5

Council Tax Support 2020 SurveyMonkey

Page 35



48 not sure as to how it can be sortted all I know is that most cannot afford any rise hence the need
for the support .Not all in band A are well off and our service are at a bare minumin now but if I had
to chose would say number 4.

10/10/2019 7:14 AM

49 Cuts to services such as litter picking but offer volunteer positions for school leavers for
experience! That would help to save a bit of money, then cut grey bin collections to once every 3
weeks. Brown week 1, grey week 2 blue week 3 nothing week 4 then the following month, grey
week 1, brown week 2 blue week 3 and grey week 4, following month nothing week 1, grey week 2
etc maybe on the weeks with “nothing” do the green bin but ask people to sign up for when they
want it collecting. this would further encourage recycling

10/9/2019 9:39 AM

50 When someone on . (housing benefits and council tax) is in hospital cap the other benefits after 3
weeks and not 6 weeks like it is now. As long as there home is safe they should have enough
money to pay bill after 3 weeks.

10/7/2019 9:59 PM

51 stop council tax all together,it is destroying peoples lives, threatening inaccuracte letters that leave
the council open to being sued.Take back all social housing that was "privatized" therefore
creating a means of income and jobs, such firms such as your housing are doing nothing to
improve housing conditions they are just "creaming" off the rent paid,such rent could go into
council treasury.

10/7/2019 6:44 PM

52 Make collecting monies more cost effective 10/4/2019 1:58 PM

53 Should not have to pay council tax. People are struggling enough. It should be scrapped. 10/2/2019 3:56 PM

54 B 10/1/2019 5:14 PM

55 reduce the expenses and perks and allowances of councillors. 10/1/2019 12:49 PM

56 na 10/1/2019 11:19 AM

57 Get rid of 25% of Council employees saving on the wages as they get paid and have a much better
pension pot than everybody else, yes I'm an elder pensioner with NO access to ANY BENEFITS
that the lazy people get via this LABOUR council.

9/30/2019 11:24 PM

58 Freeze pay rises for senior management 9/30/2019 6:33 PM

59 Cut the car allowances (leases etc) and pay for the very top managers in the council. Raise
council tax for all by 0.5%

9/29/2019 2:09 PM

60 Cut red tape . Reduce libery opening hours open at 10.30 close saturdays ..and charge £10 for
special rubbish pick ups . Be more active with fixed penelty for litter fly tipping and dog shit.

9/29/2019 12:50 PM

61 Raise council tax by income (based on the total money coming in to a property, rather than on the
value of the property itself), just like rates used to be. Two people can live side by side in a flat
complex, with both properties valued the same, yet one resident could be earning 27,000 per
annum, and the second only 13,000 per annum. How is this a fair system? People with an income
of less than 600 per month should pay NOTHING.

9/28/2019 11:37 AM

62 Stop passing all your short falling to the already struggling families who pay for some services that
we dont use or get ie I've not had fire assistance in last year why should I pay u charge us road
tax and roads are disgraceful damaging cars but nothing is done

9/27/2019 10:41 PM

63 Consult more with residents so that they have a greater say in how money is spent. Currently
people are angry at paying money and having it spent in ways they feel are not what they want.

9/26/2019 6:20 AM

64 Stop paying non working people’s council tax bill in full... all people should pay council tax and it
should be taken off there benefits if they don’t work.. don’t give them more benefits just take an
amount off there benefits to cover some of the council tax.. unfair on working people who are skint
to have to pay full when people on benefits earn more than working people

9/23/2019 7:10 PM

65 None of the above 9/22/2019 7:46 PM

66 Not raising council tax at all. It was raised enough last year 9/21/2019 1:04 PM

67 none of these 9/20/2019 8:02 PM

68 Raise the council tax paid by band C and more richer properties. This would reflect the increased
value of the properties in the current housing market..

9/19/2019 1:30 PM

4 / 5

Council Tax Support 2020 SurveyMonkey

Page 36



69 reduce council tax. our wages aren't sustanable against the outgoings of every single bill we have
to pay. we're already struggling. maybe increase council tax for those who earn above 60k per
year only

9/19/2019 10:04 AM

70 MP to take a pay cut! 9/17/2019 11:30 AM

5 / 5

Council Tax Support 2020 SurveyMonkey

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

   

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 16th January 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: A Martin – Principal Accountant 

D Donlan  – Head of Accountancy Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury 
Management Strategy Update 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No 
 

 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report updates Council on activities in this area since the start of this financial year.  The 
report has also been provided to Cabinet on 15 January 2020. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  
2.1 To note the report. 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
 As given in the Background paragraph 4. 
. 

  
4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1       The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires the Council to set 

Prudential Indicators annually for the forthcoming three years to demonstrate that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Council adopted its 
current prudential indicators at its meeting in February 2019. 

 
4.2        The Prudential Code requires the Council, having agreed at least a minimum number of 

mandatory prudential indicators (including limits and statements), to monitor them - in a locally 
determined format and frequency.  This half-year report to the Council complements a more 
regular review by the Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
4.3       The indicators are purely for internal use and not designed to be used as comparators between 

authorities.   If it should be necessary to revise any of the indicators during the year, the 
Deputy Chief Executive will report and advise the Council further.  

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7.



2 
 

4.4       ‘Treasury Management’   relates to the borrowing and cash activities of the authority, and the   
effective management of any associated risks.    On 21st February 2019 in the same report 
referred to at 4.1 above the Council also set out and then approved its current Treasury 
Management Strategy.  This was in accordance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance & Accountancy) code of practice on treasury management in public services,  the 
Council having previously adopted, via Cabinet, the then revised code of practice.  Associated 
treasury management Prudential Indicators were included in the February 2019 report. 

 
5. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS MONITORING  
 
5.1      Table 1 and Table 2 (Appendix 1) show the monitoring information for each of the prudential 

indicators, limits and statements.   They relate to: 

 External debt overall limits – Table 1    

 Affordability   (eg implications for Council Tax) – Table 2 

 Prudence and sustainability  (eg implications for external borrowing) 

 Capital expenditure  

 Other particular indicators for Treasury Management.   
 
6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 
6.1      Current Treasury Position 
 

 
Portfolio Position 2019/20 
 

Original 
Estimate 
2019/20 

£000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

£000 

External Debt 
Debt at 1st April 
Expected Change in Debt 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
9,595 

- 
252 

 
9,595 

- 
95 

Gross Debt at 31st March 9,847 9,690 

Capital Financing Requirement  (CFR) 9,128 8,971 

Under / (over) borrowing (719) (719) 

 
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (other than short-term) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
6.2 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the Council 

operates its activities within well-defined limits. In general the requirement is that CFR exceeds 
gross debt. However in 2019/20 the gross debt will exceed CFR.  This is due to the annual 
payment of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  

 
6.3 The requirement to have CFR exceed Gross Debt centres around providing an assurance that 

borrowing is not taking place for Revenue purposes.  However, as the Council is not borrowing 
additional funds at this time, this is not an issue.  

6.4  The current position of the treasury function, and its expected change in the future, introduces 
risk to the Council from an adverse movement in interest rates.  The Prudential Code is 
constructed on the basis of affordability, part of which is related to borrowing costs and 
investment returns.   

 

Page 40



3 
 

6.5 The Capital Programme 2019/20 will be funded by the use of Government Grants (including 
New Homes Bonus Grant and S31 Grants) and other external financing. It will also be 
supported during the year by greater use of internal sources of capital finance (including capital 
receipts reserve) because of the reduced level of external grant allocation. It is not anticipated 
currently that any capital borrowing will be required. 

 
7 Expected movement in interest rates 
 
7.1 The Council appointed Link Asset Services as treasury adviser to the Council and part of their 

service is to assist the Council in formulating a view on interest rates.  The following table gives 
Link’s latest available view of the expected future movement in interest rates, from quarter 
ending 30th September 2019 (their Qtr3 2019) onwards.  

   

 Qtr 3 
2019 

Qtr 4 
2019 

Qtr 1 
2020 

Qtr 2 
2020 

Qtr 3 
2020 

Qtr 4 
2020 

Qtr 1 
2021 

Qtr 2 
2021 

Qtr 3 
2021 

Qtr 4 
2021 

Base 
Rate 

0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 

5 yr 
PWLB 

2.20% 2.30% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 

10 yr 
PWLB 

2.50% 2.60% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 

25 yr 
PWLB 

3.10% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 

50 yr 
PWLB 

3.00% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 

 
7.2       In all the above forecasts there is a high level of uncertainty – due to the difficulties of 

forecasting the timing and amounts of ‘quantitative easing’ injected into the economy, and also 
the uncertainties around Brexit. 

 
7.3 The Council’s exposure to interest rate movements is largely neutralised currently as our 

borrowings are effectively at a fixed rate until a trigger point is reached, where the lender 
believes a better rate can be achieved elsewhere.  Interest rates would have to exceed 4% and 
possibly 5% before this is likely to happen. The above table indicates that this is unlikely to 
happen until beyond 2021 at the earliest. 

 
7.4       The Council has invested relatively small amounts of surplus cash on a short-term, temporary 

basis. The interest received from these investments is slightly above the budgeted expectations 
for the six months to 30 September, mainly due to higher interest rates.  Our strategy continues 
to focus on the security of deposits and the liquidity of funds. 

 
7.5       The Council continues to invest surplus cash in the top rated financial institutions.  We continue 

to spread our money around a number of institutions to ensure that we are not potentially 
damaged by the unforeseen collapse of any one bank.  Deposits are also held with banks 
where we believe that the respective governments are likely to be able to guarantee deposits in 
the event of bank failure.  This strategy is continuing to yield an appropriate rate of return, 
though at a lower rate, as there is less risk attached to these deposits.  We also operate a policy 
of holding no more than £2m in any one bank (with the exception of the liquidity account held 
with Nat West Bank where the limit is £3m) to ensure that the risk is spread.   

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REASONS FOR REJECTION 
             

None applicable. 

Page 41



4 
 

 
9.        CONSULTATIONS 
 

None applicable in this instance. 
 
10.        IMPLICATIONS 
    

Financial (Including 
any future financial 
commitments for the 
Council) 

There are none arising directly from this report. 

Legal and human 
rights implications 

The Local Government Act 2003 (part 1) and associated 
regulations gave statutory recognition to the Prudential Code - 
therefore there is a statutory backing to the background and local 
purpose of the report.   
Treasury Management activities of local authorities are prescribed 
by statute – the source of powers is, in England & Wales, the 
2003 Act.    ‘Statutory Guidance’ on investment is given by the 
DCLG to local authorities.  

Assessment of risk There are inherent risks in capital finance and treasury 
management.  When appropriate the risks are identified and 
assessed as part of the various recommendations made on 
Prudential Capital Finance and in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

Equality and diversity 
implications 

There are no specific implications for customers’ equality and 
diversity arising directly from the recommendations in this report 

 
 

12. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 Background papers are the legislation referred to in section 10 above, and the report 
approved by Council on 21st February 2019. 

 Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 and related regulations 

 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (CIPFA 2017) 

 The Council’s Policy Statement on Treasury Management (Full Council February 2019) 

 The Councils Policy on Treasury Management Practices ( Full Council February 2019) 
 
 
13. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
Contact Officer(s):     
   David Donlan, Head of Accountancy Services,  tel  380973 (internal 2973) 
   Amanda Martin, Principal Accountant (Capital),  tel  380668 (internal 2668) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s7325/Prudential%20Indicators%20and%20Treasury%20Managment%20-%20Report%20and%20Apps%201%202.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/contents
http://www.cipfa.org/Policy-and-Guidance/Publications/T/The-Prudential-Code-for-Capital-Finance-in-Local-Authorities-2011-Edition-Book
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s7325/Prudential%20Indicators%20and%20Treasury%20Managment%20-%20Report%20and%20Apps%201%202.pdf
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s7325/Prudential%20Indicators%20and%20Treasury%20Managment%20-%20Report%20and%20Apps%201%202.pdf


5 
 

                                                                                                                                          Appendix  1                                                          
 

TABLE 1     
      

 TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS     

 Prudential Indicators – actual and projected 

Original 
Indicator 
Estimate 
2019/20 

£'000 

Actual 6 
months 
£'000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2019/20 

£'000 Note 

           

 External Debt - Gross Borrowing 9,847 9,690 9,690 1 

 Authorised limit for external debt 35,000 35,000 35,000   

 Operational boundary for external debt 20,000 20,000 20,000   

 Maximum principal sum invested >364 days 3,000 0 0   

 Limit on fixed interest rate for net borrowing 100% 57% 100%  2  

 Limit on variable interest rate for net borrowing 100% 43% 43% 2 

           

 Maturity structure of borrowing limits (Upper Limit)        

  Under 12 months 43% 43% 43% 3 

  12 months - 24 months 0% 0% 43%   

  24 months - 5 years 0% 0% 43%   

  5 years - 10 years 0% 0% 43%   

  10 years and above 57% 57% 100%   

      

 
1. Includes the minor portion of borrowing from Charities (Internal Borrowing) - approximately £70k.  The 

debt is based on the capital value of mainly loans outstanding and does not include accrued interest or 
effective rate of interest adjustment (accounting adjustments to be made).  
No temporary borrowing is expected. 
The figure also reflects the liability for finance leases. 

 
2. In 2016/17 Barclays notified Hyndburn that they will class £5.4m LOBO debt as fixed rate debt.  The 

interest rate has remained the same.  The balance of debt outstanding remains as LOBO’s which are 
classed as variable.  It is not expected that these loans will be “called” and repaid during 2019/20.  
However the projection reflects that this may be a possibility (depending on movements within the 
market) and replaced with fixed rate debt. 

 
3. Borrowings of £4.12m are via LOBO agreements.  As they have a call period of 6 month intervals they 

are classed as borrowing under 12 months.  £5.4m former Barclays LOBO’s are classed as long term 
debt.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



6 
 

                                                                                                                               
Appendix 1 cont’d 

 
 

TABLE 2     

 CAPITAL FINANCE PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS    
 
 

 Prudential Indicators - Latest Estimate 

Original 
Indicator 
Estimate 
2019/20 

£'000 

Latest 
Estimate 
2019/20 

£'000 Note  

 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 9,128 8,971 1  

 Estimated Capital Expenditure   2,478 5,493 2  

 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  4% 4%   

      

      
 

1. The capital financing requirement (CFR) includes the finance lease position for the Council. CFR is a 
prescribed measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by an authority which has to be 
financed. 
 

2. Approved capital programme, including slippage b/fwd and additional fully funded schemes. 
 
 

Page 44



Page 1 of 23 
 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 16 January 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Statutory review of polling districts and polling places 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To inform members of the outcome of the latest statutory review of polling places and 
polling districts in Hyndburn and to make recommendations. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 

It is recommended: 
 

2.1   That no changes are made to the Council’s current polling district boundaries; and 

2.2   That the polling places identified in Appendix 1 are agreed. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1     Legal basis for the review 
 
           The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 requires the Council to review 

Hyndburn’s polling districts and polling stations periodically.  The review must cover 

the polling stations and polling districts used for Parliamentary, County Council and 

Borough Council elections and, following consultation with the Leaders Policy Board, a 

decision was taken to start the review in August 2019 so that any changes arising from 

the review could be implemented prior to the local elections in 2020. 

3.2   Aims of the review 
 
           When carrying out the review the Council is required by legislation to: 

 ensure that all electors have reasonable facilities for voting; and   

Page 45

Agenda Item 8.



Page 2 of 23 
 

 ensure that as far as reasonable and practicable, our polling places are 

accessible to all electors, including those with disabilities. 

Polling Districts: 

When reviewing polling districts we are required to look at the polling district 
boundaries and consider: 

 are the boundaries well defined ? 

 do the boundaries follow natural boundaries in the area ? 

 is it clear which properties belong in which polling district ? 

          In addition, we are required to look at the location of the polling district and consider: 

 are there suitable transport links within the polling district and how well do these 

serve the areas of greatest population ? 

 are there any obstacles to voters reaching the polling station e.g. steep hills, major 

roads that are hard to cross, railway lines, rivers etc ? 

Polling Stations: 

When reviewing polling stations we are required to look at the location of the polling 
station and consider: 

 is it easy to get to – are there convenient transport links or are there barriers 

such as steep hills, major roads etc ? 

In addition we must assess the size of the polling station and consider: 

 can several polling stations fit in the same room if need be  

 is the polling station big enough, especially if there is a high turnout ? 

We must also look at the suitability of the polling station and determine: 

 will the building be available if there is an unexpected election ? 

 is the building likely to be demolished or become disused ? 

 is the building accessible to people with a disability ? 

3.3        Any changes approved as part of the review will take effect in time for the local 

elections in 2020. 

3.4        Where possible, we have sought to avoid the use of mobile units as polling stations, 

as usually it is not possible to provide a wheelchair ramp within the space available at 

the relevant location. However, in a small number of polling districts there is no other 

suitable venue available within the polling district (or within a reasonable distance 

within an adjacent polling district) and we have no option but to use a mobile unit. 

Page 46



Page 3 of 23 
 

However, our experience from the three elections held in 2019 is that these do not 

generate complaints or concerns in respect of a lack of full disabled access. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 
4.1 The Council is required to comply with the legislative requirements and we have to 

carry out a periodic review. A review is now due at Hyndburn and officers had hoped to 
complete this in time to report to the Council meeting on 14th November 2019, but this 
was delayed by preparations for the recent General Election.  

            
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Extensive consultation has been carried out in accordance with legislative requirements 

and Government Guidance. In particular, a notice of the review was published at 
Scaitcliffe House and on the Council’s website and at the Town Hall, local libraries and 
community centres. In addition, details of the review were sent out to Hyndburn’s 
district and county councillors and the local MP. 

5.2 As with previous reviews, the consultation produced a very limited response, but the 
comments received have been incorporated into the attached recommendations. 

 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
mainstreaming) 

No cost implications have been identified 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

These are discussed in section 3 above. 

Assessment of risk 
 

No significant risks have been identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

The Council is subject to the public sector 

equality duty introduced by the Equality Act 

2010. When making a decision in respect of 

the recommendations in this report Cabinet 

must have regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment and victimisation; and 

 advance equality of opportunity between 

those who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who don’t; and 

 foster good relations between those who 

share a relevant protected characteristic 

and those who don’t. 

Page 47

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 23 
 

For these purposes the relevant protected 
characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. To assist the Cabinet in this 
regard a Customer First Analysis has been 
carried out as part of the review process and 
is attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 
Cabinet is advised to consider the Customer 
First Analysis and its obligations in respect of 
the public sector equality duty when making a 
decision in respect of the recommendations 
contained in this report. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 Returning Officers Proposals   
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 48



Page 5 of 23 
 

Appendix 1 – recommendations 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 

 
Altham Ward 
(Electorate 4130) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number 
of 

Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Returning Officer Comments/ 
Proposals/Representations 

Within Polling 
District 

ZA 1372 205 Mount Pleasant 
Primary School, 
Earl Street, 
Clayton-le-Moors 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

ZB1 
 
 
 
ZB2 

1077 
 
 
 

691 

194 
 
 
 

82 

Mobile Unit, GM Fitted 
Furniture. 
The Ideal Home 
Centre, Whalley Road 
 
 
Mobile Unit, GM Fitted 
Furniture. 
The Ideal Home 
Centre, Whalley Road 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 
 
Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable. 
 
No wheelchair ramp possible 

In ZB2 

ZC 181 23 St. James’ School 
Burnley Road 
Altham 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

ZD 809 154 St. Mary’s Church Hall 
Devonshire Drive 
Clayton-le-Moors 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 

P
age 49



Page 6 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 

 
Barnfield Ward 
(Electorate 3442) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

CA 1498 300 St. Paul’s Church Hall 
Plantation Street 
access 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

CB 1313 124 Woodnook Baptist 
Church 
Royds Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

CC 631 136 The Pavillion 
King George Playing 
Fields 
Off Royds Avenue 
Accrington 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 
Proposed works on hold 
May need to be reviewed if lease to 
Accrington Stanley FC proceeds in 
the future, but any lease is likely to 
provide for the building to continue to 
be made available free of charge for 
use as  
 

Yes 

 

P
age 50



Page 7 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 

 
Baxenden Ward 
(Electorate 3298) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

DA 1108 198 Haworth Art Gallery 
Hollins Lane 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

DB 
 
 
 

2190 449 St. Johns Church 
Lounge 
Church Avenue 
Baxenden 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
 

P
age 51



Page 8 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 

 

 
Central Ward 
(Electorate 3874) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

EA 1546 344 Oasis Church 
Blackburn Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

EB 
 

1059 237 Scaitcliffe Community 
Centre 
Fountain Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

EC 944 156 
 
 

Saheli Centre 
Charter Street 
Accrington 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

ED 325 70 Lupin Road Community 
Centre 
Lupin Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

 P
age 52



Page 9 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Church Ward 
(Electorate 3621) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

HA 488 39 St. Christopher’s CE 
High School 
Queens Road West 
Church 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

HB 
 

844 131 Elmfield Hall 
Gatty Park 
Church 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

HC 836 134 Ernest Street Baptist 
Church 
Church 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

HD 1453 304 Antley Methodist Church 
Hall 
Blackburn Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
 P

age 53



Page 10 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Clayton-le-Moors Ward 
(Electorate 3655) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

LA 1731 323 Arthur Wilson Centre 
Pickup Street 
Clayton le Moors 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

LB 
 
 
 

1924 288 Mercer House 
Mercer Park 
Clayton-le-Moors 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 

P
age 54



Page 11 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 

 
Huncoat Ward 
(Electorate 3711) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

AA 966 149 Huncoat Primary 
School 
Lynwood Road 
Huncoat 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

AB 
 

1656 247 St. Augustines Church 
Bolton Avenue 
Huncoat 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

AC 1089 218 Mobile Unit 
Peel Park County 
School 
Alice Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 
 
No wheelchair ramp possible 

Yes 

 
  

P
age 55



Page 12 of 23 
 

 
Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 

 
 

 
Immanuel Ward 
(Electorate 3565) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

JA 1187 330 St. Paul’s Church 
Catlow Hall Street 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

JB 
 
 
 

815 133 Union Road Community 
Church 
Oswaldtwistle 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

JC 1309 199 Holy Trinity Church 
New Lane 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

JD 254 31 Green Haworth School 
School House Lane 
Green Haworth 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
 

P
age 56



Page 13 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Milnshaw Ward 
(Electorate 3793) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

GA 702 75 St. Joseph’s Church Hall 
Pollard Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

GB 
 

2280 443 The Pavillion  
Highams Playing Fields 
Thorneyholme Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

Portakabin Mobile Unit used whilst 
works being done – Once work 
completed will revert back to using 
the building 

Yes 

GC 811 133 Lupin Road Community 
Centre 
Lupin Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
 

P
age 57



Page 14 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Netherton Ward 
(Electorate 3383) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

YA 1419 141 St. John’s CE School 
Vicar Street 
Great Harwood 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

YB 
 

1964 279 Library 
Queen Street 
Great Harwood 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, Rishton 
& Clayton le Moors 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

 
 
 
 

P
age 58



Page 15 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Overton Ward 
(Electorate 5115) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

XA 2462 418 Trinity URC & Methodist 
Church 
Entrance off King Street  
Great Harwood 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

Works being done to church roof – 
Using Great Harwood Christian 
Fellowship, Commercial Street, 
Great Harwood in the interim. 

Yes 

XB 
 

2145 313 Bank Mill House 
Church Street 
Great Harwood 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

XC 508 53 Mobile Unit 
Waverledge Estate 
Wordsworth Drive 
Great Harwood 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 
 
No wheelchair ramp possible 

Yes 

 
 
 
 P

age 59



Page 16 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 

 
Peel Ward 
(Electorate 3180) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

BA 637 88 St Johns Church Vestry 
Addison Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington North 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

BB 
 

2045 230 Cambridge Street 
Methodist Church 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

BC 498 62 Lancashire ACF 
Washington Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington South 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 60



Page 17 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
Rishton Ward 
(Electorate 5266) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

MA 832 119 Rishton Bowling Club 
Parker Street 
Rishton 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

MB 
 

2247 323 St. Peter & St. Paul 
Parish Hall 
Blackburn Road 
Rishton 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

MC 2187 354 St. Charles’ Weekday 
Chapel 
St. Charles’ Road 
Rishton 
 
 

Hyndburn 
Constituency 
 
Great Harwood, 
Rishton & Clayton le 
Moors County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
  P

age 61



Page 18 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 

 
Spring Hill Ward 
(Electorate 3647) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

FA 942 132 Community Centre 
31 Fairfield Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

FB 
 

1077 205 Community Centre 
33 Moorhouse Avenue 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

FC 877 158 Mount Carmel RC 
School 
Wordsworth Road 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

FD 751 157 Scaitcliffe Community 
Centre 
Fountain Street 
Accrington 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

 
 P

age 62



Page 19 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 

 
St. Andrew’s Ward 
(Electorate 3467) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

IA 2128 256 Civic Arts Centre 
Lord Street 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Accrington West & 
Oswaldtwistle Central 
County Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

IB 
 

760 186 Moor End School 
The Sunshine Room 
White Ash Lane 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

IC 579 96 Community Centre 
Byron Close 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 
 

P
age 63



Page 20 of 23 
 

Schedule of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations as at 1 July 2019 
 
 
 

 
St. Oswald’s Ward 
(Electorate 5103) 

 

Polling 
District 

Number of 
Electors 

Number of 
Postal 
Voters 

Current Polling Place Other Election Area 
Information 

Recommendation  Within Polling 
District 

KA 308 54 Belthorn Primary School 
Belthorn Road 
Belthorn 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

KB 
 

1740 354 St. Oswald’s Church 
Knuzden 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

KC 1664 354 All Saints Church Hall 
Aspen Lane 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

KC2 299 62 Holy Trinity Church 
New Lane 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

No 

KD 1092 145 West End Community 
Centre 
Blackburn Road 
Oswaldtwistle 
 

Hyndburn Constituency 
 
Oswaldtwistle County 
Division 
 

No change, existing arrangements 
are suitable 

Yes 

 

P
age 64



Page 21 of 23 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Customer First Analysis: 

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 

 

 
1. Purpose 
 

 What are you trying to achieve? 
The Council is ensuring that the boundaries of polling districts are identifiable and that polling 
places are suitable for use and accessible to all 
 

 Who defines and manages it? 
The Council is under a statutory duty to carry out the review in accordance with Government  
Guidance 
 

 Who do you intend to benefit from it and how? 
Electors should be able to attend their allotted polling place easily and have reasonable 
facilities for voting. 
  

 What could prevent people from getting the most out of the change? 
There may be some electors who are not aware of the change of building and do not know 
who to contact to check correct details 
 

 How will you get your customers involved in the analysis and how will you tell people 
about it? 

Public notice about the review has been posted at Scaitcliffe House, the Town Hall, local 
libraries and community centres and details are on the Councils website.  Councillors and 
County Councillors have been consulted on the proposals, as have political parties and 
various local groups representing people with a disability. 
 
 
2. Evidence 
 

 How will you know if the policy delivers its intended outcome? 
No adverse comments from electors and no significant decrease in turnout. 
 

 How satisfied are your customers and how do you know? 
As above.  The consultation provided no public response, but this may be  due to either a lack 
of interest or general public satisfied with their polling places. 
 

 What existing data do you have on the people that use the service and the wider 
population? 

Voters are not monitored by equality groups. 
 

 What other information would it be useful to have?  How could you get this? 
None in particular. 

Page 65



Page 22 of 23 
 

 

 Are you breaking down data by equality groups where relevant? 
See above. 
 

 Are you using partners, stakeholders, and councillors to get information and feedback? 
Yes – see above.  Councillors, disabled groups and local people are involved in the 
consultation process. 
 
 
3. Impact 
 

 Are some people benefiting more – or less - than others?  If so, why might this be? 
If suitable premises cannot be found then this could be a barrier for wheelchair users, those 
with pushchairs and the partially sighted.  Those who do not have their own transport and 
have to rely on public transport could be affected   
 
 
4. Actions 
 

 If the evidence suggests that the service benefits a particular group – or disadvantages 
another - is there a justifiable reason for this and if so, what is it? 

Part of the criteria for buildings to be used is to ensure that wherever reasonable and 
practicable every polling place is accessible to electors who are disabled and wish to vote in 
person. However, it is not always possible to locate a suitable building within the polling 
district. 
 

 Is it discriminatory in any way? 
No. In some instances it just may not be possible to find a suitable venue with disabled 
access. And, whilst recognising that everyone should if possible be able to go and cast their 
vote, voters do have the facility to apply for a postal vote. Presiding officers will also take the 
ballot paper out to voters who wish to vote in person but are physically unable to access the 
polling station. Voters can also appoint proxies.   
 

 Is there a possible impact in relationships or perceptions between different parts of the 
community? 

See above. 
 

 What measures can you put in place to reduce disadvantages? 
There are no resources available for carrying out modifications to buildings, whether Council 
or privately owned. Postal votes are available and voters are able to appoint proxies in certain 
circumstances. 
 

 Do you need to consult further? 
No.  Comments were invited at the beginning of the review and then after proposals had been 
published. 
 

 Have you identified any potential improvements to customer service? 

Page 66



Page 23 of 23 
 

No, hopefully we expect that most people should not notice any difference to their polling 
place and those who have a change will be told about it. 
  

 Who should you tell about the outcomes of this analysis? 
Polling place correspondents will be informed as soon as possible of the outcomes.  Public 
notice will be given at the conclusion of the review.  Any changes to polling places will be 
mentioned in a press release and if possible highlighted on poll cards at the next local 
election.  It is hoped that notices will be displayed at buildings no longer used as polling 
stations, directing electors to their new polling places. 
 

 Have you built the actions into your Business Plan with a clear timescale? 
The proposals are to be agreed by Council. 
 

 When will this assessment need to be repeated? 
The next review will have to be completed in accordance with statutory timescales. 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 13th November, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair), Councillors Loraine Cox, 

Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, Jenny Molineux and Joyce Plummer 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson and June Harrison 

  

 
165 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies submitted. 
 

166 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

167 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 12th September 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

168 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports provided by Cabinet Members present at the meeting. 
 

169 Gypsy and Traveller Planning Policy (Local Plan Regulation 18(3) Consultation) 
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE, the Leader of the Council, reported the completion of a 
new part of the Local Plan evidence base, the Gypsy and Traveller and Travelling 
Showperson Accommodation Assessment (GTAA), and its key findings.  The report set out 
a proposed planning policy approach to address the needs of travellers in the new Local 
Plan and sought approval for a consultation process under Regulation 18(3) of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
The Leader reported that the Council had a good track record of meeting its responsibilities 
in relation to Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showpersons over a long period of time, but 
that other Lancashire authorities had not been as proactive.  Councillor Tony Dobson, 
Leader of the Opposition, commented that the Conservative group supported the proposals 
and echoed the comments made about other authorities needing to meet their 
responsibilities. 
 
Approval of the Report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The GTAA included information on gypsy and traveller pitch requirements and travelling 
showpeople plot requirements.  The new Local Plan should seek to address the net 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

requirement for 42 new gypsy and traveller pitches over the period of the plan as set out in 
the GTAA.  A consultation paper was provided, which set out a proposed 3-step sequential 
policy approach for the Local Plan, as follows, to help meet those requirements: 
 
1. Allocate and safeguard all existing authorised traveller sites; 
2. Ensure all pitches on authorised traveller sites are fully utilised; and 
3. Identify additional new traveller sites either through the expansion of existing 

authorised sites or the identification of new sites. 
 
Any responses to the Regulation 18(3) consultation, including details of any further site 
option submissions, would be brought to Cabinet in early 2020.  Further site assessment 
work and evidence base work would then be required before the Publication version of the 
new Local Plan could be prepared. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Local Plan is being prepared in accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  As the preparation of a Local Plan is to be in 
accordance with this legal framework there are no alternative options for its preparation.  
Specific policy options have been considered and addressed through the previous 
Regulation 18(1) and (2) consultations, and are set out in the accompanying sustainability 
appraisal reports.  A further sustainability appraisal will be published alongside the 
Regulation 18(3) consultation documents, along with other supporting justification papers. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet notes the content and findings of the Gypsy 

and Traveller and Travelling Showperson Accommodation 
Assessment 2019 (included in the report as background 
paper 1); 

 
(2) That Cabinet notes and approves the content of the 

Gypsy and Traveller Policy and Site Options Consultation 
paper (included in the report as background paper 2); 

 
(3) That Cabinet delegates authority to the Chief Planning 

and Transportation Officer, following consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Planning, to make any final minor 
changes to the Consultation paper as they consider 
necessary or appropriate; and 

 
(4) That Cabinet approves the publication of the Consultation 

paper for a 6 week consultation period recommended to 
commence on Friday 29th November 2019 (concluding on 
Friday 10th January 2020). 

 
170 Political Canvassing on Broadway Accrington and Town Square Great Harwood 

 
The Leader of the Council reported on a proposal to remove any restrictions relating to 
political canvassing (the systematic initiation of direct contact with individuals commonly 
used during political campaigns) on (i) Broadway Accrington (“Broadway”) and (ii) the Town 
Square Great Harwood (“the Town Square”). 
 
The approval of Cabinet was also sought to the use of Broadway and the Town Square for 
political canvassing and to authorise the Executive Director (Environment) to agree the 
operation and management of political canvassing in those locations. 
 

Page 70



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Councillor Tony Dobson queried the rationale for and timing of the changes.  The Leader 
responded that enforcement of the current rules was not practical and that the political 
climate had eased since the original restrictions had been applied.  Other safeguards now 
existed, as legislation was in place to govern the promulgation of extremist views.  
Accordingly, the time was now right to test a less restrictive approach to political 
canvassing. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Broadway and the Town Square are popular spaces and the Council wants to make the 
best use that it can of these areas to benefit the residents of Hyndburn.  
 
The Council is keen to encourage activities, events and entertainment on areas such as 
Broadway and the Town Square and now intends to widen the approved uses of both these 
areas.  Currently charitable and leisure activities are generally permitted in these areas, 
subject to having been given the appropriate permissions and licences. 
 
Political canvassing on Broadway and the Town Square has been prohibited for a number 
of years.  At the time that this decision was taken by the Council it was considered to be a 
proportionate and reasonable approach.  However, as there have been significant changes 
in the political climate over recent years it is not considered that the previous prohibition is 
still required. 
 
The Council has approached the Company that manages the letting of space on Broadway.  
The detail as to how requests for political canvassing on Broadway will be processed and 
managed has not yet been agreed with the Company.  The Council’s Executive Director 
(Environment) will finalise this process in respect of both Broadway and the Town Square.   
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could continue to prohibit political canvassing on Broadway and the Town 
Square, but this may mean not using these public spaces to their full potential. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet agrees to the removal of the current 

restrictions prohibiting political canvassing on Broadway 
and the Town Square; 

 
(2) That Cabinet approves the use of Broadway and the Town 

Square for political canvassing; and 
 
(3) That Cabinet delegates to the Executive Director 

(Environment) authority to finalise the detail of how 
political canvassing will be managed and operated on 
Broadway and the Town Square, including agreeing the 
process with the Company that the Council has appointed 
to manage Broadway. 

 
171 Littering and Dog Fouling Enforcement - 12 Month Update 

 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council, provided an update on the 12 month 
pilot agreement on littering and dog fouling enforcement approved by Cabinet on 18th July 
2018 and which commenced on 5th November 2018. 
 

Page 71



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Councillor Tony Dobson queried whether the income generated by the enforcement 
company through fines was sufficient to sustain the contract, given that the Council’s 10% 
share amounted to approximately £3,000.   Councillor Paul Cox responded that some of the 
fines were still progressing through the courts and that some had been written off.  
However, the enforcement company believed that they could fund four enforcement 
officers. 
 
A written response would be provided to Councillor Dobson in connection with matter of the 
income available to the enforcement company. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Following a review of the Council’s litter and dog fouling enforcement action, Cabinet 
requested officers to submit a proposal to tackle those irresponsible residents whose 
actions blemish the local environment. 
 
As there were insufficient resources in-house to undertake a major drive in tackling litter 
and dog fouling and in line with a wish to have enforcement officers on the ground for the 
opening of Accrington’s new Town Square, Kingdom Services Group was appointed on a 
pilot 12 month service level agreement, (a subsequent review of its structure saw the 
enforcement side of Kingdom changed to ‘LA Support Ltd’).  
 
Enforcement staff were authorised by the Council to issue ‘on the spot fines’ through the 
use of Fixed Penalty Notices, (FPNs) at an agreed value of £75, with 14 days to make the 
payment.  Cabinet members requested a 2 week period of public education prior to the first 
FPNs being issued, to raise public awareness of the need to dispose of litter responsibly 
and clean up after dogs. 
 
The 12 month pilot agreement would enable the Council to gain a better picture of its long-
term operational and resource requirements for a service of this type and allow the Council 
to procure a service that meets its needs over the longer term. 
 
During the two week education period, four officers undertook 314 hours patrolling the town 
centre handing out around 500 letters advising offenders they could be issued with a FPN 
in future. 
 
The table below shows how many PFNs were issued for each of the 11 months of the pilot.  
The reasons for the variances can be partly answered by: fluctuating staffing levels; FPN’s 
only starting to be issued from 19th November; and no patrols over the Public Holiday 
periods. 
 

2018 2019 

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep 

           

128 178 184 230 284 160 159 217 177 208 219 

 
Under the agreement, the Council has access to view ‘live’ information on LA Services 
recording system.  The report provided statistical information compiled over the pilot period 
in relation to the following categories: 
 

 Gender/age; 

 Ethnicity; 

Page 72



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 Number of allocation of PFNs issued; 

 FPN Status; and 

 Prosecutions. 
 
The report also provided information in relation to the payment process, the policies and 
procedures for handling complaints and the number and types of cases arising, together 
with details of the income generated by the service. 
 
The 12 month pilot agreement expires on 4th November 2019.  However, LA Services are in 
agreement to continue with the current pilot agreement/arrangements until 31 March 2020.  
Extending the pilot agreement would allow sufficient time for a tender exercise to be 
undertaken for the provision of Litter and Dog Fouling Enforcement Services and would 
also include the option for enforcement action against litter being thrown from vehicles 
following new legislation that allows enforcement action to be taken against the vehicle’s 
registered keeper.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council no longer undertakes enforcement action against littering and dog fouling.  Not 
providing enforcement services is not recommended and would reverse the improvements 
seen in street cleansing as people would quickly become aware there was no longer the 
potential for being issued with a FPN if they dropped litter or did not clean up after their dog. 
 
Resolved (1) Cabinet approves the continued use of external 

enforcement services to tackle littering and dog fouling 
offenders; 

 
(2) Cabinet agrees to waive the Council’s contract 

procedures rules and approves an extension to the 
existing 12 month service level agreement with LA 
Services up to 31st March 2020; and 

 
(3) Cabinet requests the Executive Director (Environment) to 

undertake a tendering exercise and delegate authority to 
him, following consultation with the Portfolio Holder, to 
agree terms with and appoint a suitably experienced 
external enforcement contractor as set out in paragraphs 
3.12 and 3.13 of the report. 

 
172 Accrington Markets - Review of Rents and Charges 

 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council, provided a report requesting Cabinet to 
consider offering a discount on rents at the Market Hall to certain traders in return for those 
traders agreeing to new leases and working practices which would help the Council reduce 
its ongoing operating costs. 
 
Councillor Munsif Dad welcomed the proposals and believed that this would help existing 
Market Hall traders to continue.  The Leader added that this was part of a wider group of 
measures being undertaken to rejuvenate Accrington town centre, and would be 
complemented by the Council’s investment in town centre events in the Town Square and 
Hyndburn Leisure’s marketing of the Town Hall.  The Council was an enabler in the 
programme to develop the town centre as a social hub, of which the retail offer was a 
constituent part.  Making the best use of internet marketing might also benefit traders.  
 

Page 73



 
 
 

 

 
6 

Councillor Tony Dobson concurred that there were no easy solutions and added that the 
Conservative Group would be supportive of the Council being proactive.  The group had 
already committed to sharing its ideas through a cross-party working group. 
 
Councillor June Harrison enquired about whether a particular market trader who had given 
notice to quit had now decided to return.  Councillor Paul Cox confirmed that that was the 
case.  He also indicated that the any plan for reinvigorating the town centre would require 
the support of traders and that market hall traders had been involved in the proposals now 
presented. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Trading conditions on the high street continue to face unprecedented pressures from 
reduced footfall, on-line shopping and out of town centre retail centres/supermarkets.  The 
indoor Market Hall has not been immune from these pressures, as shown by a number of 
traders recently leaving and current occupancy levels are at 55%. 
 
On 22nd September 2017, the Council’s Estates Manager produced a Valuation Report 
recommending charges per square foot that could be used to determine the level of rents 
within Accrington Market.  At its meeting on 29th August 2018, Cabinet agreed to a 
reduction in rents by 13.4%, and adjustments to service charges for the indoor Market Hall 
traders, phased in over a 12 month period from 1st October 2018 and gave authorisation to 
consider extended incentive terms/rates under exceptional circumstances for incoming 
indoor tenants that would provide significant added value to all stall holders.  At that time, 
Cabinet was not asked to consider extended incentives terms/rates to current indoor 
tenants that would also continue to provide significant added value, but it is now recognised 
this was an oversight. 
 
The indoor Market Hall traders, whilst acknowledging the 13.4% reduction, continued to 
make representations to Officers, the Portfolio Holder responsible for Markets and other 
Councillors, that the rents are too high compared to those being offered for other buildings 
around the town centre.  A number of tenants that left to set up trading elsewhere cited high 
rents as the main factor and provided an example to the Portfolio Holder.  A discount in 
rents could place the Markets in a stronger position to retain existing tenants and attract 
new traders, as well as an incentive for some outside traders to move into the indoor 
Market Hall. 
 
The proposal sets out a 30% discount in rental charges within the indoor Market Hall, which 
would reduce the current £19 sq. ft. charge to £13.30 sq. ft.  There is no proposal to make 
any further adjustments to service charges and the following traders will not benefit from 
any discount in their rental charges. 
 

 Indoor Balcony traders – Current average weekly rent £35 

 Peel Street shops – Current average charge £19.44 sq. ft. 

 Pavilion Kiosks – Current average charge £18.52 sq. ft. 
 
The 30% discount would see the monthly rental charge for an average indoor Market Hall 
stall reduce from around £577 + VAT to around £405 + VAT.  This is a decrease of £172 
per month or £43 per week and would reduce rental income to the Council by 
approximately £54,000 per annum.  Whilst this will place additional financial pressures on 
the Market’s current overspend forecast for 2019/20, for 2020/21 and beyond, most of this 
discount could be offset by the expected savings proposal.  
 

Page 74



 
 
 

 

 
7 

The discount offered to indoor Market Hall tenants is conditional that they sign a new 3 year 
lease and make all monthly rent or other payments via Direct Debit, (DD) and adhere to the 
Council’s Market Regulations.  Where a current indoor market trader is in arrears, no 
discount will be applied to the arrears and this must still be cleared within the previously 
agreed timescales.  The 30% discount will only commence once the new 3 year lease has 
been signed by the tenant and the tenant has provided proof the DD mandate is in place.  
Any tenant not agreeing to these conditions will remain on the £19 sq. ft. rental charge.  
 
A review of the market staffing structure is currently underway and should be implemented 
before the end of the financial year.  If approved and implemented, the proposals could 
have the potential to offer savings in the region of £50,000 per annum. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could leave the rents at the current level.  This has been rejected because 
there is a political wish to see the Market Hall occupied and operating a range of traditional 
market stalls and no desire for lower occupancy levels. 
 
The Council could consider discounting a different rate.  Property owners/landlords are 
offering substantially lower rents or 12 month free rent / service charges for comparable 
trading premises.  Whilst the Council is not in a position to match long period rent free, 
there is a political wish to see the full efficiency savings offered up as the discount.  
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet approves the discount in rental charges for 

the indoor Market Hall set out in paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5 
and subject to the conditions in paragraph 3.6 of this 
report with effect from 1st January 2020 for a period of 3 
years; 

 
(2) That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director 

(Environment) in consultation with the Executive Director 
(Legal & Democratic Services) to agree the  terms and 
conditions of the leases between the Council and each 
individual indoor Market Hall tenant and to sign the same 
on behalf of the Council; 

 
(3) That in exceptional circumstances, authorisation be given 

to the Executive Director (Environment), following 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder responsible for the 
Markets and Leader of the Council, to negotiate and agree 
other or additional incentives with current market trader/s 
where the trader/s concerned is/are considered to 
contribute significantly to the appeal of all stall holders or 
footfall in the Market or otherwise brings significant 
added value to the Market as a whole; 

 
(4) That Cabinet notes the discount in rents will reduce 

income levels for the final quarter of the financial year 
2019/20 and it is unlikely any efficiency savings will offset 
this immediately as they will take time to implement and 
filter through; and 

 
(5) That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director 

(Environment) following consultation with Portfolio 
Holder responsible for the Markets to periodically review 

Page 75



 
 
 

 

 
8 

and amend the Council’s Market Regulations as they shall 
consider expedient. 

 
173 Annual Ombudsman Letter 2019 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, reported on the annual Local 
Government Ombudsman’s (LGO’s) letter for 2018/19. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The LGO has published its annual complaint figures in respect of each local authority. 
 
The LGO receives a low level of complaints about Hyndburn, which makes it difficult to 
identify trends from the statistical information provided.  The low level of complaints may 
however reflect good service delivery and / or a good internal complaint handling process. 
 
In summary, in 2018/19 the LGO received 8 complaints about the Council.  The table below 
shows the service areas to which the complaints related and compares this to the position 
in the last two financial years: 
 

2018/19  2017/18  2016/17  

Benefits & CT 3 Benefits & CT 1 Benefits & CT 0 

Environmental 
Services 

1 Environmental 
Services 

4 Environmental 
Services 

2 

Housing                                                                1 Housing                                                                2 Housing                                                                1 

Planning                                                            3 Planning                                                            7 Planning                                                            2 

Corporate Services                            0 Corporate Services                            0 Corporate Services                            1 

Total  8 Total  14 Total  6 

 
During this period the LGO also determined 11 complaints about the Council.  Details are 
set out in the table below, which also compares this to the position in the last 2 financial 
years: 
 

2018/19  2017/18  2016/17  

Complaint not 
upheld                                            

4 Complaint not 
upheld                                            

3 Complaint not 
upheld                                            

0 

Sent back to HBC                     5 Sent back to HBC                     6 Sent back to HBC                     3 

Closed after initial 
enquiry        

2 Closed after initial 
enquiry        

2 Closed after initial 
enquiry        

3 

Upheld                                      0 Upheld                                      0 Upheld                                      1 

Total  11 Total  11 Total  7 

 
 
Complaints will usually be referred back to the Council for resolution because the complaint 
to the Ombudsman was made before the complainant had been through the Council’s own 
complaints procedure. 
 
Most importantly, the Ombudsman’s letter does not flag up any areas of concern about 
either the Council’s services or its procedures for dealing with complaints. 
 
The table below shows a comparison between the Council’s position and that of 
neighbouring District Councils over the same period.  This exercise also does not indicate 

Page 76



 
 
 

 

 
9 

any obvious cause for concern in respect of the Council, with Hyndburn receiving a 
comparable number of complaints to its neighbours: 
 

Council Complaints 
received 

Complaints 
decided 

Complaints upheld 
after detailed 
investigation 

Hyndburn 8 11 0 

Burnley 7 7 0 

Pendle 8 8 1 

Rossendale 18 19 2 

Ribble Valley 8 9 1 

Chorley 10 12 3 

South Ribble 16 15 0 

Preston 26 25 3 

West Lancs 9 11 1 

Lancaster 9 7 0 

 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet welcomes the Ombudsman’s letter for 

2018/19 and notes this report. 
 

174 Amendment to the Rules, Regulations and Procedures for Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing 
 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, provided a report seeking approval 
for an amendment to the Rules, Regulations and Procedures for Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing, so as to extend the issue of a 6 month licence plate to vehicles up to 
the age of 10 years old. 
 
Councillor Plummer indicated that, although there were no specific funding implications for 
the Licensing Service, there might be a loss of around £8,000 for the Vehicle Maintenance 
Unit, due to the reduction in the frequency of vehicle tests for vehicles over the age of 7 
years.  Councillor Munsif Dad commented that the reductions in testing would be welcomed 
by the taxi trade.  He agreed that it was important that those taxis working in Hyndburn 
should continue to be licensed in the Borough for enforcement purposes. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Council are responsible for setting the vehicle testing frequency for hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicles, which in turn determines the period of the licence that is issued.  
Currently vehicles under the age of 2 years are tested annually and issued with a 12 month 
licence.  Vehicles between the age of 2 years and 7 years are tested every 6 months and 
issued with a 6 month licence and vehicles over the age of 7 years are tested every 4 
months and issued with a 4 month licence.  A vehicle cannot remain licensed beyond the 
age of 15 years. 
 
Recently, when carrying out impromptu roadside inspections of licensed vehicles in 
conjunction with the police and officers from DVSA it has been noted that the standards of 
the vehicles being checked have risen and that less improvement notices are being issued.  

Page 77



 
 
 

 

 
10 

The hackney carriage and private hire proprietors have taken on board guidance from 
licensing officers and have co-operated with them to ensure that the standards are raised.  
 
Officers now believe that the 6 month licence could be extended to include vehicles up to 
the age of 10 years.  This is because of the improvements as set out above and because 
officers are now carrying out more frequent roadside inspections which would highlight any 
potential issues between tests.  Blackburn Council which is our closest neighbour issues 
licences for 6 months and if Hyndburn do not consider doing the same, it is possible that 
vehicles will be taken to Blackburn to get a 6 month licence and then come back into 
Hyndburn to work.  If this were to happen we would have no authority over the standard of 
the vehicles. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could take no action and continue with the current policy and frequency of 
testing, however officers do not feel that there would be any additional benefit to public 
safety and in fact there could be a detrimental effect to public safety as owners migrate to 
neighbouring authorities to have vehicles tested and licensed then come back into this area 
to work leaving the Council with no control over the safety and comfort of the vehicles.   
 
Resolved - That Cabinet approves the amendment to the Rules, 

Regulations and Procedures for Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing as set out in the report. 

 
175 Lease Renewal - Hyndburn Voluntary & Community Resource Centre, St James Old 

School Building, Cannon Street, Accrington 
 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder Housing and Regeneration, provided a report 
seeking approval, taking into account amended financial implications, to accept the 
surrender of the existing lease of St James Old School Building, Cannon Street, Accrington 
from Hyndburn Voluntary & Community Resource Centre Ltd (HVCRC) and grant them a 
new 25 year lease. 
 
The Leader confirmed that the current voluntary and community sector usage of this 
building was very successful and that the building itself contributed to the overall quality 
appearance of St James Square.  Councillor Munsif Dad added that the management team 
at the Resource Centre was very effective and that the success of the Centre was a credit 
to them.  
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
HVCRC currently hold a lease of St James Old School Building, Cannon Street, Accrington 
which is due to expire on 18th September 2024.  HVCRC have requested a new 25 year 
lease on similar terms to the existing lease to satisfy conditions required in relation to a 
grant of £165,708 from the Reaching Communities - Buildings Big Lottery Fund (BLF).  This 
lease will assist HVCRC to satisfy conditions of the grant offer from BLF by enabling BLF to 
be provided with a satisfactory certificate of title from their solicitor, together with a 
completed deed of dedication and evidence that a restriction on the title of the land and 
buildings has been registered in favour of BLF. 
 
The offer of the grant of £165,708 from BLF has been made to the HVCRC in an offer letter 
dated 24th April 2018.  HVCRC will be expected to deliver building works comprising new, 
modern and accessible facilities, including new kitchens and toilets, redecoration and 

Page 78



 
 
 

 

 
11 

replacement of internal doors throughout, in addition to an automated door entry system at 
the main entrance of the building.  This work aims to increase the number of activities and 
services, and number of people attending them, who are elderly, disabled and indeed all 
members of the community, thus improving community cohesion, health and wellbeing and 
reducing social exclusion. 
 
The original lease of the building was granted for a term of 7 years less one day from 20th 
September 2004.  The replacement lease was for a term of 3 years to 19th September 
2014.  The current lease is for a period of 10 years from 19th September 2014.  All previous 
leases including the current one were granted, subject to the tenant paying a nominal 
peppercorn rental. 
 
The lease will include a user clause which stipulates that the building should be used as a 
community resource centre in accordance with the tenant company’s charitable objectives. 
 
The building is currently used by a range of organisations delivering key services to a 
diverse range of groups and clients with over 300 people visiting the site weekly.  A range 
of social activities take place including yoga, dance and fitness classes available to young 
and old, both during the day and in the evenings.  The centre also hosts the Red Rose 
Recovery and Smart Recovery Circle.  Both groups work with vulnerable members of the 
community in helping them deal with addictions, behavioural issues, encourage self-
development and rebuild self-esteem and confidence.  They provide help and support 
through activities and training and the groups work with multi-agencies to aid recovery and 
reduce dependency on drugs and alcohol.  
 
The grant offer is conditional on BLF approving a Capital Delivery Plan and Business Plan 
(which is currently a work in progress by HVCRC) and entering into a lease with the Council 
and this has been suggested by the BLF to be for a term of 25 years. 
 
The lease will include a full repair and maintenance clause and, as such, it is expected that 
income derived from the activities will be reinvested into the building for maintenance and 
repairs, including those identified in a recent condition survey of the building, and are not 
dependant on HVCRC receiving the grant from BLF.  In 2017 HVCRC reported to BLF a 
surplus of £29,018. 
 
The tenant will, in accordance with the lease, be expected to ensure they comply will all 
relevant legislation whilst in occupation and provide the Council as landlord with evidence 
of that compliance. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The building could be used as offices with a potential annual rental income of £25,000.  
However, there is currently a surplus of office accommodation in the Borough and therefore 
this income is not guaranteed. 
 
If an alternative use were to be supported, the Council would need to bring the current 
lease to an end by serving the appropriate notice.  It would then need to advertise the 
building available to let or for sale.  There is already a surplus of vacant buildings in the 
town centre and the current proposal supports the Council’s policy to transfer under-used 
assets to suitable community groups where this is possible. 
 
The building could be opened up to other community groups, but the Council has not been 
approached by others to manage this building.  In addition, the current tenant has a good 
track record of providing community based activities and services from this building.  
Another group may not have the same success rate. 

Page 79



 
 
 

 

 
12 

 
The new 25 year lease is a prerequisite of the BLF providing £165,708 to HVCRC, which 
will be used to upgrade the building and facilities.  Not providing the lease will jeopardise 
this funding opportunity and HVCRC would then be unlikely to be able to afford to carry out 
these improvements.  This does not negate their liabilities under the terms of the lease to 
carry repairs and maintenance of the site. 
 
To charge market rent for the building could mean the tenant does not enter a new lease, 
the BLF funding opportunity would be lost and vital services could cease.  
 
Resolved - That Cabinet agrees to accept the surrender of the current 

10 year lease of St James Old School Building, Cannon 
Street, Accrington, by Hyndburn Voluntary & Community 
Resource Centre Ltd and agrees to grant a new 25 year 
lease to Hyndburn Voluntary and Community Centre Ltd 
for nil consideration on the basis that, having considered 
part 3 of this report and the amended financial 
implications in part 6 of this report, Cabinet is satisfied 
that the grant of the lease and the proposed usage of the 
building will continue to promote the social, economic 
and environmental wellbeing of the Borough. 

 
With the agreement of the meeting the next three Items were taken ahead of Agenda Item 
12. 
 

176 Hyndburn Green Review 
 
The Leader of the Council presented a report by Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, requesting Cabinet to consider the 
recommendations arising from the Committee’s meeting held on the 31st October 2019 in 
relation to the Hyndburn Green Review- Overview and Scrutiny Panel Report. 
 
The Leader reminded Members that the Council at its meeting on 19th September 2019 had 
signed up to the declaration of a ‘Climate Emergency’.  Subsequently, the Council had 
engaged One Carbon World, a delivery partner for the UN ‘Climate Neutral Now’ campaign, 
to provide advice upon carbon neutrality.  The cost of engaging this organisation was £3k, 
but grants were available for up to 80% of this cost.  The grant funding would also be 
available to other Lancashire authorities, but Hyndburn was the first to sign up. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson was pleased at the announcement and that Hyndburn was the first 
authority in Lancashire to engage One Carbon World.  He commented that there was cross-
party support for the green initiatives indicated that the Conservative Group looked forward 
to the details that would follow. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
At its meeting on 11th September 2018, the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
resolved to establish a Scrutiny Panel to look at environmental issues which affect 
Hyndburn.  The Scrutiny Panel would be called “The Hyndburn Green Review”. 
 
It was determined at that meeting that the quantity of work required, background research 
to be carried out and consultation with Hyndburn Borough Council departments, Lancashire 
County Council and local organisations needed could not be done thoroughly within the 

Page 80



 
 
 

 

 
13 

confines of a formal committee meeting, therefore the Hyndburn Green Review Scrutiny 
Panel was established. 
 
It was agreed that Councillors Jenny Molineux and Stephen Button would act as Co- 
Chairs of the Panel, and that an open invitation should be submitted to all non-Cabinet 
members to become part of the Panel.  Councillors Noordad Aziz, Tim O’Kane and Michael 
Miller were appointed to the Panel, as was Joan West, a member of the Green Party who 
the Panel determined could add some real knowledge to the review being carried out.  
 
It was agreed that the Panel would set its own terms of reference and project plan.  There 
was much debate on establishing the particular terms of reference, with several variations 
discussed before agreement was made, as follows: 
 
(i) To review Hyndburn Borough Council’s contribution to improving the environment 

including, but not limited to, energy usage, carbon footprint, recycling and service areas 
linked to the green agenda. 

 
(ii) To investigate whether or not the Council has environmental objectives, and if so, its 

performance against those objectives. 
 
(iii) To review on a wider scale, environmental issues in Hyndburn which are not related to 

Hyndburn Borough Council, including, but not limited to LCC, transport, landfill and 
other organisations with a green agenda. 

 
The Panel held its first meeting on the 13th November 2018.  This initial scoping meeting 
would determine exactly what Members wished to get out of the review and the scrutiny 
review process.  The subject of this review had potentially endless angles which could be 
considered relevant, therefore the Panel felt it was important to narrow down exactly where 
they wished the review to focus. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer and Chair of the Panel collated all the information to 
produce the Panel’s report.  A final meeting was held with the Panel to agree the document 
and recommendations, which was held on the 24th October 2019. 
 
As part of the Scrutiny process, the full report of the Panel was submitted to the Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 31st October 2019 for approval prior to 
submission to an upcoming Cabinet meeting. 
 
Due to the number of recommendations in the report, the Panel would not expect instant 
responses to the recommendations from Cabinet and instead hoped that Cabinet will report 
back to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee with its responses once it has 
had time to consider the report by the Panel in full. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Cabinet may choose to agree to any or none of the recommendations made by the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Hyndburn Green Review Panel. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet notes the contents of the Hyndburn Green 

Review - Overview and Scrutiny Panel Report. 
 
(2) That Cabinet approves the implementation of a cross-

party Member and Officer working group to analyse the 
summary of information within the report and make 
progress on the recommendations of the Panel. 

Page 81



 
 
 

 

 
14 

 
177 Financial Position September 2019 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2020 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, reported on the financial spending 
of the Council up to the end of September 2019 and the financial forecast outturn position 
for the Accounting Year 2019/20.  Members considered a table within the report, which set 
out the core financial details. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson enquired about the likely impact of the 30% discount in rental 
charges within the indoor market approved under Agenda Item 8.  The Leader 
acknowledged that it was easier for some services to break even than others.  The 
challenges faced by the Market Hall were as a result of changing shopping habits.  
However, the building was a grand centre-piece to the town centre and the long term vision 
was for it to at least break even.  Councillor Paul Cox highlighted Paragraphs 3.5 – 3.8 of 
the report at Agenda Item 8, which addressed some of the financial issues raised. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The spend for the first 6 months of the financial year to the end of September 2019 is 
£5,663,000 compared to a Budget of £5,744,000 giving a positive variance of £81,000 over 
the first 6 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2020 is £10,913,000 
compared to a Budget of £10,993,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£80,000 by the end of the financial year.  There are small adverse forecasts for Planning & 
Transportation, Policy & Corporate Governance, Regenerations and Property Services and 
Environmental Services, with positive variances elsewhere producing an overall surplus. 
 
Environmental Services 
 
Environmental Services are predicting a year end adverse variance of £75,000.  This stems 
from salary savings of £11,000 on Food Safety, Waste Services income down £9,000 and 
£1,000 of additional miscellaneous costs offset by £103,000 of positive variance against 
Budgets on Recycling and £15,000 of salary savings.  Parks & Cemeteries are predicting 
an adverse variance of £15,000 due to a predicted shortfall in income of £36,000 less 
£13,000 saved on salary costs and £6,000 of other savings while the Cemetery and 
Crematorium Service are forecasting £5,000 more income and £3,000 net additional spend 
by the year end.  The Town Centre and Market Halls Budget is indicating an overall 
adverse variance of £177,000, comprising £190,000 reduced income at the Market Hall and 
income from CCTV down by £10,000 less £12,000 of salary savings and £11,000 of 
miscellaneous cost savings. 
 
Culture & Leisure Services 
 
Culture and Leisure Services are indicating a positive variance of £25,000 due to £30,000 
of savings on leisure budgets less £5,000 additional net expenditure at the Haworth Art 
Gallery. 
 
Planning & Transportation  
 
Planning & Transportation are predicting an adverse variance for the year of £38,000.  This 
is due to a predicted shortfall in income compared to budget on Building Control of £65,000 
and additional salary expenditure in this area of £21,000.  Elsewhere on the Budget there 

Page 82



 
 
 

 

 
15 

are £23,000 of staff savings and £46,000 of additional income less £21,000 of 
miscellaneous additional expenditure. 
 
Regeneration & Property Services 
 
Regeneration & Property Services are predicting an adverse variance of £89,000 at year-
end with salary costs up by £63,000 over the year compared to budget and expected 
additional costs of £56,000, less £30,000 of additional income. 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance 
 
Policy & Corporate Governance are predicting an adverse variance of £134,000.  This 
stems from salary savings of £78,000 less the Corporate Savings Target for the year of 
£165,000, predicted increases of £100,000 on Housing Benefit Costs, along with £10,000 of 
additional miscellaneous costs less £63,000 of additional income. 
 
Non Service Items 
 
The current estimate for the year is a positive variance of £389,000. 
 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet notes the report and asks Corporate 

Management Team to continue to reduce costs and 
increase income over the remaining months of the 
financial year. 

 
178 Medium Term Financial Strategy  2020/21 to 2022/23 - October 2019 Update 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder Resources, provided a report informing the 
Cabinet of the 3-year projections of income and spending for the Council ahead of 
formulating its 2020/21 Revenue and Capital Budgets. 
 
The detailed Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was provided as an appendix to the 
report. 
 
The Leader expressed his satisfaction with the report and the commented on the 
accessibility of the information provided.  It was noted that next year’s finances would now 
be relatively straightforward due to the delay of the Government’s Fair Funding Review and 
that there were some positives for the future taking into account likely increases in Council 
Tax and the growth in business rates predicted.  Overall, Hyndburn had consistently been 
able to deliver below inflation Council Tax rises, at the same time as dealing with the 
pressures of austerity. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson welcomed the announcement that the Council was expected to 
continue to receive £1.5M Revenue Support Grant for 200/21.  It was acknowledged that all 
local authorities’ finances had been squeezed in recent years. 
 
Councillor Plummer thanked the Deputy Chief Executive and his staff for their work in 
providing the report. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 

Page 83



 
 
 

 

 
16 

The Cabinet requires an update on its medium term financial outlook ahead of setting the 
Budget for 2020/21 and determining the level of Council Tax for the new financial year.  
This report also ensures those decisions are taken with a view to the overall position of the 
Council going forward and are not limited to a narrow one year perspective. 
 
There were no alternative options considered or reasons proposed for rejection 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet approves the report and the accompanying 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 
 

179 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following items, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within the 
Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the 
item. 

 
180 Accrington Stanley Community Trust Loan 

 
In accordance with Regulation 5(6)(a) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, approval was given by 
Councillor Glen Harrison, Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to the following decision being made by Cabinet on 13th November 2019 in 
private, on the grounds that the decision was urgent and could not reasonably be deferred. 
 
Reason for Urgency 
 
To enable progress to be made on the arrangements for a loan to the Trust, at the earliest 
opportunity, to aid them with their development of a Sport Hub at Higham Playing Fields. 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Education Leisure & Arts, Councillor Munsif Dad BEM, JP provided 
a report informing the Cabinet of a request from Accrington Stanley Community Trust 
(ASCT) for a loan in connection with the Trust’s development of a Sport Hub at Higham 
Playing Fields. 
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved - That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report 

be approved. 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 

Page 84



 
 
 

 

 
17 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 15th October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Stephen Button (in the Chair), Councillors Jean Battle MBE and 

Sara Britcliffe 
 

  

 
140 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies for absence, declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

141 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting held on 3rd July 2019 were submitted for approval. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

142 Licensing Hearing Procedure 
 
The Council’s Conduct of Hearing Procedure to be used in relation to a hearing required 
under the Licensing Act was submitted. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 
 

143 Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing - The Pack, Belthorn 
 
In accordance with the Hyndburn Borough Council Policy on the Conduct of Hearings and 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the Licensing Manager (Mrs Redfern) 
advised the Licensing Sub-Committee of the details of an application that had been 
received for a Premises Licence for the Pack, Elton Road, Belthorn, under Section 18 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.   
 
The copy of the Licensing Authority’s Conduct of Hearings Procedure had been circulated 
prior with the agenda prior to the meeting. 
 
The Licensing Manager informed the Sub-Committee of a number of representations 
received by the Council objecting to the proposed licence under the current conditions.  She 
reported that one of the objections had since been withdrawn.  
 
The Sub-Committee gave consideration to the evidence objecting to the application from 
Councillor Marlene Haworth and a resident.  Their objections related to residents’ concerns 
about the current location of the entrance to the premises (which was not the same layout 
plan that had been submitted with the application) which they felt would increase the 
likelihood of noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour.  They also expressed concern about 
the opening hours which they felt were too early and too late.  They pointed out that 
residents would prefer more reasonable opening hours and suggested that the layout of the 
premises was changed to the former layout to protect against noise nuisance and anti-
social behaviour.  They also proposed that the external wall surrounding the premises was 
raised to help to prevent noise nuisance.   

Page 87

Agenda Item 10.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
The Sub-Committee was referred to additional information supplied by the applicants of the 
Pack including: 
 

 Copy of an extract from Licensing Register 

 Copy letter sent to Resident Objectors (26.09.2019) 

 Copy letter sent to Resident Objectors (04.10.2019) 

 Copy e-mail Exchange with Lancashire Constabulary 

 Copy email/Freedom of Information Response from Hyndburn Borough Council 

 Copy Judgement (Daniel Thwaites vs Wirral Borough Magistrates Court) 
 
The premise owner, Switzer Holding (UK) Limited, was represented at the meeting by 
Adam Chapman (Director) and their Solicitor, Samantha Faud, Naphens Solicitors.  The 
applicant circulated a pack of documents prior to the meeting, as outlined above, and also 
offered to amend the requested hours for the sale of alcohol and permitted opening hours.  
In addition the following three conditions were also offered: the customers not being 
permitted to take drinks into the external area after 21:00 hours, no amplified music in the 
external areas and the use of a preferred taxi company.   
 
The Sub-Committee considered the application and representations.  They took into 
account the statutory guidance pursuant to S 182 of the Licensing Act and in accordance 
with Section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 made its findings.  
 

Resolved (1) That, having taken into account Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act and in accordance with Section 18 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and after considering the 
representations made by the applicant’s representative 
and the objectors, the application for a Premises 
Licence was granted subject to the amendments as set 
out in the decision notice to reduce the opening hours; 
and 

 (2) That the following additional conditions be added to the 
premise licence: 

 1.   Customers shall not be permitted to take drinks into 
the external area after 21:00 each day and signs will be 
placed at the exit advising customers accordingly;  

  2. There shall be no amplified music permitted in the 
external areas and no speakers will be situated in the 
external areas at any time;  

  3.  When requested to order taxis for customers, the 
premises will utilise a taxi company who have 
previously agreed not to sound their horns to signal 
their arrival. 

   
 
 
 
     
 

 

Page 88



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
PLANNING (TREES) SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 17th October, 2019 

 
Present:  
 
 
 

Councillor Parkins (in the Chair),  
Councillors Stewart Eaves and Kate Walsh 
 
 

Apologies Jean Battle MBE, Melissa Fisher, Judith Addison and Eamonn Higgins 

  

 
144 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
 
Councillor Dave Parkins acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Fisher. He was 
appointed as Chair when the meeting commenced.   
 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Judith Addison, Jean Battle, Melissa 
Fisher and Eamonn Higgins. 
 
Councillor Stewart Eaves acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Higgins and 
Councillor Kate Walsh acted as a substitute for Councillor Battle.  
 
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Addison. 
  
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.         
 

145 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee held on the 10th July 2019, were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

146 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Tree Preservations Order(s) 
 
The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer and the Arboricultural & Conservation Officer 
submitted a report to determine the application that is proposing works to a protected tree 
at 2A High Street, Rishton. The applicant is seeking to fell the tree.  
 
No 1 – Rear Parker Street – Rear 2A High Street, Rishton.    
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer presented information and photographs of 
the tree and advised Members that an assessment of the tree had been undertaken and 
was included in the report attached to the agenda.  
 
Resolved - (1) That consent to undertake works to the tree be refused on 

the grounds that the tree continues to be in good health and that 
the tree makes a positive contribution to the amenity and street 
scene of this part of Rishton that outweighs the impact the tree 
is having on the applicant.  

Page 91



 
 
 

 

 
2 

  
-  (2) That appropriate steps are taken to protect the tree and 
reinstate the soil that has been removed over the roots.  

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 92



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 30th October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Patrick McGinley, Dave Parkins 
and Kate Walsh 
 
Co-optee Bernard Dawson 
 

  

  

Apologies: Bernadette Parkinson, Judith Addison, June Harrison and Doug Hayes 
 

 
147 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Judith Addison, 
Councillor June Harrison, Councillor Bernadette Parkinson and Doug Hayes.  
 

148 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 

Councillor Tony Dobson and County Councillor Bernard Dawson both declared 
personal interests in Abbeyfield Society with it being in their wards as Hyndburn 
Councillor and Lancashire County Council Councillor, for openness and 
transparency.  
 
 

149 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday 4th September 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
  
Resolved        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

150 Healthy Place Healthy Future 
 

Beth Wolfenden, Public Health Development Manager attended from Blackburn with 
Darwen Borough Council and gave a presentation on Healthy Place Healthy Future 
Trailblazer project.   
 
Earlier this year Pennine Lancashire had successfully been identified as one of the 
five national Trailblazer areas to tackle childhood obesity, as part Local Government 
Association's Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme. 
 

Page 93



 
 
 

 

 
2 

The Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme seeks innovative action to tackle 

childhood obesity at a local level.  The programme is funded by the Department of 

Health and Social Care and managed by the Local Government Association. The 

programme commenced in June 2019 with five sites selected to lead projects to 

implement their plans. In Hyndburn, Oswaldtwistle had been chosen to be the initial 

test area to tackle childhood obesity and this will commence soon. Over three 

years, Trailblazer authorities will develop, deliver, review and expand their plans. 

Each Trailblazer authority will receive £100,000 worth of funding and project support 

each year to progress their project. This will include government expert support, 

subject matter expertise, support from the Delivery Support Partner, FutureGov. 

Some support will also be provided to trailblazer authorities to develop their local 

evaluation plans in the early stages of the three year programme. 

 
The approach will be to engage and work with Schools, the Community, Café’s, Hot 
Food Takeaways, Council staff and most importantly gaining support from Elected 
Members. Elected Members could play a key role in championing and promoting 
the importance of healthy weight in children at a local level, in effect giving high 
level visibility and leadership to the issue.  
 
The Pennine Lancashire Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme, now known as 

Healthy Place, Healthy Future (HPHF) embraces four key levers for change: 

 

 Engage with system leaders and policy heads to drive system change 

 Develop a consistent planning approach across Pennine Lancashire 

 Support businesses to provide this change. 

 Understand how local communities can be supported to create a social movement to 

demand healthier food 

 
 
The Chair commented to engage Lancashire County Council Education department 
about the Schools and School Governors being involved in the programme.  
 
Councillor Walsh commented her delight of the programme, she would like to see 
engagement with communities, in particular Breast Feeding support groups and 
Healthy cooking classes for people to attend to encourage children to eat healthier.  
 
Another key area to assist on this programme is the Planning system where local 
authorities could take action. It is important that planning applications had 
consideration to ensure facilities and infrastructures existed to give everyone the 
opportunity to live in a healthy weight environment.  
 
The Chair would like to see some work explored with the Planning department to 
impose restrictions and exclusion zones on areas that have oversubscribed fast 
food takeaways.  
 
The Committee acknowledged it would be a challenge to engage fast food 
businesses to sell healthier options but agreed with the programme. 

Page 94



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
The Chair thanked Beth Wolfenden for her attendance and the presentation 
delivered.  
 
Resolved –  (1) That Members from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

be involved in the Childhood Obesity Trailblazer Programme; and  
 

(2) That Beth Wolfendale sends details of the Member training 
event in November to the Overview and Scrutiny Officer.   

 
 
 

151 Review of Town Centre Events 2018-2019 
 

Councillor Paul Cox (Deputy Leader and Environmental Services Portfolio Holder) 
and Steve Riley, Executive Director (Environment) submitted a report on the Review 
of Town Centres Events to provide an update to the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee around the twelve-month event programme 
following the Town square refurbishment.  
 
Members had submitted questions, in advance, to the officers concerned in respect 
of the following:  
 

 In relation to attendance figures at events, how accurate are the statistics 
and how are these non-ticketed events calculated in terms of numbers. 
 

 Are various vendors at events requested to keep prices down or set them to 
a minimum cost so families are not put off attending. 
 

 For a food element of an event, could a local business at the top of Warner 
Street for example, be offered a discounted rate to bring their goods into the 
town square. 
 

 British Cycling can visit a town and produce a health and safety risk 
assessment of a cycling route which would be signed off and insurance by 
them. Have they been approached to investigate this offer. 
 

 Feedback suggests event insurance is a problem for community and charity 
groups, could a blanket insurance cover be used for all town centre events.  
 

 Funding wise, £80,000 has been spent to date leaving only £110,000 for the 
next two years. Will there be a shortfall or is the aim to make future events 
self-funding. 
 

 Have alternatives such as bus adverts been researched into the advertising 
of events apart from using social media. 
 

 Have radio advertisements been purchased in the past and does the Council 
Press Officer link into the promotional side of events.  
 

Page 95



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 Could a quarterly events poster be produced for all Hyndburn town centre 
shops and supermarkets (4 times a year) to promote what events are taking 
place in the next 3 months. Shopkeepers could be briefed on the details so 
they can talk to customers about it.  
 

 Could a quarterly event leaflet be produced for all schools in the Borough. 
 

 Scott Dawson Advertising have been used in the past for events, does 
feedback suggest their events are successful and provide real value for 
money compared with other organisations.  
 

 What are the financial figures on sponsorships of events. 
 

 Could the ‘My Hyndburn’ site be used as a marketing tool. 
 

 How does the payment plan work, such as the final payment after an event, if 
it was cancelled.  

 
Councillor Paul Cox, provided responses to the above advanced questions.  
 
Members of the Committee referred to the following issues and requested more 
information on certain aspects of the Town Centre including insurance cover for 
voluntary groups when holding events in the Town Centre and what the event 
request form covers regarding terms and conditions and security.   
 
In addition, Councillor Patrick McGinley expressed concerns regarding the following 
issues:  

- Other townships were not receiving a share of the funding.  
- More transparency was required about sponsorship monies received. 
- Did the funding include the cost of security to events. 
- Promotion of the Town Centre events should be extended beyond 

Accrington.  
 
 
Resolved – (1) That Steve Riley, Executive Director  

(Environment) will look at how many residents have registered 
with my.hyndburn app and report back to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer;  

 
(2) That Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader and Environment 
Services Portfolio Holder to return to this committee with an 
update on Town Centre events in 12 months.  

 
152 The Abbeyfield Society 

 

The chair referred to the two letters enclosed in the agenda from The Abbeyfield 
Society concerning its proposed closure of Oak Hill Mansion.  
 
A number of advanced questions had been submitted to the Chief Executive from 
the Committee and the Committee will await a response. 

Page 96



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
Catherine Hooper and John Thompson attended the meeting on behalf of the 
Hyndburn Volunteer Committee of the Oakhill Mansion and the Chair invited them 
to discuss their thoughts and concerns around the proposed closure.   
 
The Committee had a discussion on the information Catherine had shared and how 
they could support.   
 
The Chair thanked them both for attending the meeting.  
 
Resolved -   (1) That the additional questions be forwarded to the Chief 

Executive for a response; and  
 

(2) That a meeting be arranged between the Chief Executive and 
Catherine Hooper and John Thompson. 

 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Wednesday, 30th October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Sara Britcliffe, 

Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding (Vice Chair), Terry Hurn and 
Joyce Plummer 

  

 
153 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies submitted. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

154 Minutes of Last Meeting of the 31st July 2019 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage Licensing) held on 31st July 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

155 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure to be followed at the meeting in relation to hackney 
carriage and private hire drivers’ and operators’ licences was submitted.  A copy had been 
sent to the licence holder. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 
 

156 Guidance on Determining the Suitability of Applicants and Licensees in the Hackney 
and Private Hire Trades 
 
The Institute of Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades was 
submitted, which was used to assist Hyndburn Borough Council when determining the 
suitability of applicants and licensees in the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades.  A 
copy of the Guidance had been sent to the licence holder. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidance be noted. 
 

157 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or the 
nature of the proceedings, that there would otherwise be 
disclosure of exempt information within the Paragraphs at 
Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the item. 

 

Page 99



 
 
 

 

 
2 

158 Consideration of an Existing Private Hire Operators Licence 
 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed private hire operator (MMH).  The report included a copy of the operator’s current 
licence, a witness statement from the Licensing Manager and a copy of an e-mail from the 
Integrated Transport Manager, Lancashire County Council. 
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the main issues contained within the report.  Attention was 
drawn to the policy and guidance for hackney carriage and private hire trades and the 
suitability of applicants and licensees.  The private hire operator (MMH) was present at the 
meeting and responded to the issues raised in the report. 
 
Members of the Committee asked the private hire operator a number of questions in 
relation to the evidence provided within the report. 
 
The Licensing Manager summarised the case as presented and the Committee’s 
responsibilities, as set out in Section 4 of the report.  The private hire operator then 
summed up.  Certain assertions made by the private hire operator in his summary about his 
record as a licensed driver and operator were challenged for accuracy by the Licensing 
Manager. 
 
The Licensing Manager and the private hire operator then left the meeting, while the 
Committee considered the matter.  Following a discussion both parties were recalled to the 
meeting to allow a member of the Committee to ask a question on a point of clarification, 
following which both parties again left the meeting. 
 
The Committee then determined the case in the absence of the two parties and went on to: 
 
(a) Determine the facts as set out in the report and provided in the oral submissions 

made by both parties at the hearing; 

(b) Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether no further action was necessary or 

whether those facts gave reasonable cause for the Committee to consider revoking or 

suspending MMH’s private hire operator’s licence; and  

(c) Determine what action, if any should be taken against the operator. 

 
Resolved - After considering all the circumstances the Committee 

decided that the complaint against the private hire 
operator MMH be upheld.  On the basis of the findings of 
fact the Committee determined that the actions of MMH 
which had led to the 2 convictions under the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 had 
been inappropriate and that he was not considered to be 
a ‘safe and suitable person’ to hold a private hire 
operator's licence.  The Committee determined that his 
private hire operator's licence be revoked pursuant to 
Section 62(1) of the Local Government Act 1976 for the 
reasons outlined at the meeting and set out in the 
confidential decision notice. 

Page 100



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 31st October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle MBE (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane and Sara Britcliffe 
 
Co-optees:  Paul Barton, Ian Ormerod and Bernard Dawson 
 

In Attendance:  

  

Apologies: Councillors Terry Hurn and Paddy Short 
 

 
159 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Hurn and Councillor Short. 
 
Councillor Britcliffe acted as substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 
The Chair reported that the Labour Members of the Committee had a personal interest in 
item 4 – Hyndburn Arts Trust, due to Gayle Knight being a member of the Labour Party. 
 

160 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 5th September 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

161 Review of New Recycling Scheme and Litter/ Dog Fouling Enforcement Scheme 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services presented a report on the 
Council’s new recycling scheme and town centre litter and dog fouling enforcement.  He 
reported that recycling rates had increased slightly since the introduction of the new 
procedures.  He informed the Committee of the awards that Hyndburn had won reflecting 
the success of the schemes.   
 
The Executive Director, Environment explained the difference in the way that figures were 
recorded for waste reduction and recycling and Members were referred to appendix one 
which showed comparison figures of the East Lancashire local authorities for residual and 
recycling waste.    
 
Councillor Aziz requested that the Executive Director, Environment circulated Members of 
the Committee a copy of data showing how Hyndburn compared with other local authorities 
across the country.  The Executive Director, Environment indicated that he would look into if 
this was possible. 
 

Page 103



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Executive Director, Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services responded to a number of questions previously submitted by Members as well as 
further questions at the meeting on the following issues: 
 

 Categories of fixed penalty notices for cigarette butts, general litter and dog fouling. 

 Commission and monthly targets for Enforcement Officers. 

 Patrolling areas or targeting hotspot areas? 

 Training standards for Enforcement Officers. 

 The age range of the 4% under 20 years old. 

 Body cam footage? 

 The cost effectiveness of contracting Enforcement Officers rather than an in-house 
team.  

 An increase in Fixed Penalty Notices compared with last year. 

 Concern that funds were being generated by fines rather than efforts being made to 
educate and prevention. 

 
A summary of the main points were: 
 

- Littering with cigarette butts, littering and dog fouling were common problems across 
all authorities and required more than one approach to reduce the problems.    

- The Executive Director, Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services indicated that they would look into reports that the 
Enforcement Officers had targets for raising funds through fines but pointed out that 
they were not aware that this was happening.   

- The Executive Director, Environment indicated that the renewal of the contract 
would give consideration to the current success of the scheme.  

- The Enforcement Company owned the footage recorded on video cameras and that 
it was usual to video only when prosecuting a person. 

- Areas had been identified as hotspots and Enforcement Officers had been directed 
to patrol these areas.   

- The Council had done all it could to prevent dog fouling including providing free dog 
bags and the provision of additional dog bins but had accepted that issuing fines 
was also a deterrent. 

- The scheme, so far, had significantly reduced the amount of littering in the borough. 
- There was currently no cost to the Council for this service. 
- Those categorised as being fined under the age of 20 years would be around 18-19 

year olds. 
 
Resolved (1) That the report be noted; and  
 (2) That Members’ comments, as outlined above, be 

forwarded onto the Executive Director, Environment.   
 

162 Hyndburn Arts Trust 
 
The Labour Members of the Committee declared personal interests in Hyndburn Arts Trust, 
due to Gayle Knight being a member of the Labour Party. 
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited updated the Committee on the financial situation with 
Hyndburn Arts Trust.  She reported that a meeting had been held with the Executive 
Director, Finance in relation to the financial management of the Company and that the 
accounts were due to be signed off at the next Board Meeting which was scheduled to take 
place soon.  She indicated that since her attendance at the last Committee they had 
complied with all of the recommendations made and referred to a number objectives that 

Page 104



 
 
 

 

 
 

had been resolved including staffing issues and the invoicing of schools for pantomime 
performances.  She also explained that extra funding raising events had taken place.   
 
Councillor Aziz requested an explanation for uncategorised income.   
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited referred to problems with how this income had been 
recorded but pointed out that this had now been resolved and the accounts updated.     
 
Councillor Aziz reported that Hyndburn Arts Trust had taken the recommendations on board 
and that the Committee appreciated the impact of the organisation on the Oswaldtwistle 
Community.   
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited proposed that all new Councillors and Senior Officers 
visited all local buildings and were given a tour to raise awareness of their significance in 
the community.   
 
Members expressed gratitude at the significant progress made by the Hyndburn Arts Trust. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee recommend that Cabinet grant the 

release of the second tranche of funding, of £10,000, 
subject to the conditions being met as set at the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 2nd 
September 2019. 

 
163 Review of Agency Staff Costs 

 
The Chair reported on the research undertaken in relation to agency staff costs for 
Hyndburn Borough Council.  He reported that a meeting had been scheduled with 
Department Heads to discuss this issue and propose different ways of doing things.  He 
invited Members to participate in the process by forwarding on their comments to the Chair 
and Overview and Scrutiny Officer. 
 
Resolved - That Members’ comments on the use of agency staff 

and its cost are forwarded onto the Chair and Overview 
and Scrutiny Officer. 

 
164 Hyndburn Green Review- Overview & Scrutiny Panel Report 

 
The Co-Chair of the Hyndburn Green Review (Councillor Stephen Button) reported on the 
completion of the Green Review – Overview and Scrutiny Panel and pointed out that 
Members of the Panel had been pleased with the outcomes of the meetings.   
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to the appendix showing the 
comments submitted by Panel Members before approval of the final report, as attached to 
the agenda.  He advised that the matter would continue to be looked at by a new 
Committee formed to progress the issues raised by the Panel.    
 
Councillor Aziz referred to a report released by the Friends of the Earth in which Hyndburn 
was in the bottom twenty but suggested that this Review would help to address some of 
these issues.   
 
Members referred to the recommendations relating to woodland coverage and the 
availability of financial incentives.  Councillor Britcliffe reported that Prospects were looking 
at three Nature Reserves in Oswaldtwistle with the aim to plant more trees.   
 

Page 105



 
 
 

 

 
 

It was reported that the Green Review report would be submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration.   
 
Resolved (1) That the report be noted and approved by the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and  
 (2) That the summary and recommendations of the Scrutiny 

Panel be reported to the next meeting of Cabinet. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 106



 

 
1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 18th November, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Chris Knight (in the Chair), Councillors Noordad Aziz, 

Michael Miller and Stewart Eaves 
 

Apologies Councillor Tim O'Kane, Kate Walsh and Kath Pratt 

  

 
189 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Tim O’Kane, Councillor Kath 
Pratt, Councillor Kate Walsh and Helen Stevenson (Grant Thornton). 
 
Councillor Stewart Eaves acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Tim 
O’Kane. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 
 

190 Appointment of the Chair 
 

Resolved – That Councillor Chris Knight was appointed as Chair person for 
this meeting.   
 

191 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 

The minutes of the last meeting held on the 29th July 2019 were submitted for 
approval.  
 
Resolved  - That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.  
 

192 Audit Progress Report and Key Issues July 2019 - October 2019 
 

The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the 
Audit Committee of Audit reports issued during the period July – October 2019 and 
bring to the attention of the Committee what they key issues were.  
 
It was reported there was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the 
end of the current financial year in terms of audit days completed. The position at 
the end of October 2019 was 55.84% of the plan completed and the projected out 
turn position for 2019/20 was 95.73%.  
 
A summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out between July – 
October 2019 was attached to the report as Appendix 1 detailing both substantial 
and comprehensive audit assurance in the following areas:  
 
Substantial Assurance 

Page 107



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 Corporate Strategy 

 Cloud Storage & Server Room Security 

 Planning – Delegate Reports  

 Employee Safety  

Comprehensive Assurance  

 Cash Receipting 

 Selective Licensing – Private Landlords 

 

The Head of Audit Investigations gave a verbal update to the Committee regarding 
the Cloud Storage, Server Room Security and Employee Safety audits.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

193 Audit Follow Ups Report July 2019 - October 2019 
 

The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the 
Audit Committee on the outcome of routine follow-ups following previous agreed 
action plans for completed Audit Records. The follow-ups detailed within the report 
were those carried out during the period July – October 2019.  
 
The information relating to the follow-ups were detailed within Appendix 1 of the 
report.  

 Dog Warden Service  

1 action agreed and 1 action implemented. 

 

 Capital Programme  

2 actions agreed and 2 actions implemented.  

 

Resolved – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  

 
194 The Annual Audit Letter for Hyndburn Borough Council (Grant Thornton ) 

 

Councillor Noordad Aziz entered the meeting at the commencement of this item.  
 
Grant Thornton submitted a report to inform members of the Annual Audit Letter, 
which summarised the key findings arising from the work carried out at Hyndburn 
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2019.  
 
Andrew Smith from Grant Thornton reported that the letter was intended to 
communicate the results of their work to the Council and external stakeholders. It 
also highlighted issues that they wished to draw to the attention of the public.  
The executive summary provided the Committee with the main messages and the 
reports issues.  
 
The Committee had a discussion around the additional fees, which are currently 
being challenged across Lancashire.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 

Page 108



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
195 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Grant Thornton) 

 

Grant Thornton submitted a report which informed members of the Audit Committee 
with an update on progress as of November 2019 in delivering Grant Thornton’s 
responsibilities as external auditors to the Council. It included a summary a 
summary of emerging national issues and developments that were relevant and a 
number of challenging questions in respect of emerging issues which the 
Committee considered.  
 
Andrew Smith of Grant Thornton went through the report with a summary of details 
for each section, which included: 

 Progress at November 2019 

 Audit deliverables 

 Sector Update  

 CIPFA – CFO confidence survey 

 MHCLG – Independent probe into local government audit 

 National Audit Office – Code of Audit Practice 

 Local Government Association – Profit with a purpose, delivering social value 

through commercial activity 

 MHCLG – Brexit preparations 

 Public Accounts Committee – Local Government Governance and 

Accountability 

 

Andrew Smith of Grant Thornton confirmed that they cant formally continue with 
Audits for 2019/20 until the fee dispute has been resolved within Lancashire.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 16 January 2020 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Head of Member Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motions for Debate at Council -  

1. Food Poverty 
2. Austerity hasn’t worked in Education 
3. LCC Approach to Speeding and Road Safety 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: N/A 

 
Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council Procedure 
Rule A9:- 
 
1. Food Poverty 
 
The United Nations Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, to which the UK is a 
signatory, states that ‘the right to adequate food is indivisibly linked to the inherent dignity of 
the human person and is indispensable for the fulfilment of other human rights enshrined in 
the International Bill of Human Rights’.  It further affirms that ‘states have a core obligation to 
take the necessary action to mitigate and alleviate hunger’. 
 
In 2009 there were 20 Trussell Trust food banks in the UK. Now there are 428, operating out 
of 2,000 distribution centres, plus over 800 independent food banks.  From April 2018–March 
2019 the Trussell Trust gave out a record 1.6 million emergency food parcels to people in 
crisis. 
 
3m children are at risk of hunger during the school holidays.  Nearly one in five children under 
15 lives in a home where their parents cannot afford to put food on the table, according to a 
report by the House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee. 
 
Around 10% of the NHS budget goes on treating type 2 diabetes and up to 1 million people 
live in food deserts in the UK. 
 
The Conservative Government has utterly failed to respond to the growth of food poverty 
since 2010 especially in deprived boroughs like Hyndburn and areas like East Lancashire. 
 
This Council resolves to write to the new Government and to ask them to tackle the issue of 
food poverty and give local councils resources to address this endemic issue. 
 
Proposer: Cllr Noordad Aziz 
Seconder: Cllr Tim O'Kane 
 
Submitted on 13th December 2019 

Page 111

Agenda Item 11.



 

 
2. Austerity hasn't worked in Education  
 
Following a motion that was passed in this chamber on 20th September 2018, to highlight the 
impact of school cuts on schools in Hyndburn, no response was ever received from the 
Conservative Government and school budgets for schools in Hyndburn have continued to be 
cut.  Therefore, the Council resolves to write to the Department of Health to highlight the 
funding cuts that have been caused by the Conservative Government(s) since 2010 on school 
budgets.  83% of schools will still lose out next year because of Government cuts.  Austerity 
hits the most vulnerable in society and is a barrier to social and economic mobility and has 
caused schools to shut early, have larger class sizes and reduces the life chances of pupils 
from poor and deprived backgrounds. 
 
We, as a Council, resolve to request the new Government that Hyndburn schools have their 
budgets increased, allowing schools in the Borough to have the correct equipment and 
resources to inspire and educate our next generation, equipping them with the skills to 
transform East Lancashire. 
 
Proposed by Cllr Noordad Aziz 
Seconded by Cllr Stephen Button 
 
Submitted on 13th December 2019 
 
3. LCC Approach to Speeding and Road Safety 
 
That this Council resolves to write to Lancashire County Council (LCC) to highlight the 
Hyndburn Borough Councillors’ concerns around its approach to areas of speeding and road 
safety. 
 
The councillors feel that the LCC approach to addressing road safety issues is based on a 
reactive response, rather than a proactive response, with fatalities and injuries used as an 
indicator in deciding what remedial action is appropriate. 
 
This is not the correct way to address speeding and road safety issues in our opinion, 
especially in built up areas where the safety of all residents is paramount. 
 
We would ask that a review of how to address speeding and road safety be undertaken and 
that LCC adopts a proactive approach to keeping the residents of Hyndburn safe. 
 
Proposer by Cllr Noordad Aziz 
Seconder by Cllr Tim O'Kane 
 
Submitted on 20th December 2019 
 

Page 112


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	6. Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/2021
	Appendix 3 - Consultation Comments Received
	Q1 Which of the following funding options, if any, do you think we should choose?


	7. Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury Management Strategy Update
	8. Statutory Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
	9. Minutes of Cabinet
	10. Minutes of Committees
	Minutes - Planning Trees Sub Committee - 17 Oct 19
	Minutes - Comms and Wellbing OSC - 30 Oct 19
	Minutes - Judicial Committee (PH and HC Licensing) - 30 Oct 19
	Minutes - Resources OSC - 31 Oct 19
	Minutes - Audit Committee - 18 Nov 19

	11. Motions submitted on Notice

